SO
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIKH 2+ #110:11 RCYD Lllo

OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall
Concord, NH 03301-3834

) A DIVISION OF PLANNING
CHRISTOPHER T. SUNUNU Tel?;llc')rzzbgts){);_; 12;(]3 ]25I55 DIVISION OF ENERGY
GOVERNOR - www.nh.gov/osi
May 3, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) to amend the SOLE SOURCE Contract Agreement (Contract
#1077847) with Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (VC #177195}, Berlin, NH, by increasing the
contract amount by $170,000.00 from $117,140.00 to $287,140.00 to supplement the Agency’s Weatherization
Assistance Program (WAP) effective upon approval of Governor and Executive Council, through December 31,
2021. The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on 12/16/2020, item #30. 100% Federal
Funds. (LIHEAP-US DHHS)

Funding is available in the following account:

Office of Strategic Initiatives, Fuel Assistance FY2021

01-02-02-024010-77050000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief _ $170,000.00
EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of the US Department of Energy’s (US DOE) grant guidance

(10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the Weatherization Assistance Program
due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of services to clients eligible for WAP, and their
historical performance delivering the weatherization program.

OSl is responsible for administering New Hampshire’s statewide Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP).
The objective of the program is to reduce energy consumption and the impact of energy costs in low-income
households. Priority is given to the elderly, disabled, households with children, and households with high-energy
usage. The funding in this contract will supplement WAP work.

The Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP-US DHHS) funding will allow the Community
Action Agency (CAA) to effectively and efficiently increase the number of homes receiving heating system
improvements and/or full weatherization services in the program year. OS] estimates that approximately twenty-
five (25) additional homes will be assisted in the CAA’s service area as a result of the additional funding.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this contract.

Respectfufty submitted,
~ \

Jared Chicoine
Director

G&C 05719121
TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964



OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

SUBJECT: BUILDING WEATHERIZATION PROGRAM PY2] CONTRACT WITH
TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

AMENDMENT

This Amendment dated April 14, 2021, is between the State of New Hampshire, Office of Strategic
Initiatives, 107 Pleasant Street, Concord, Memmimack County, NH 03301 (hercinafter referred to as “OSI”)
and Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, Coos County, NH 03570
(hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor”).

Pursuant to an Agrecment (hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”), Contract Number 1077847, as

. approved by Governor and Council on December 16, 2020 (Item #30), the Contractor has agreed to
provide certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agrccmcnt in consideration of
payment by OS] of certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the pl’OVlSlOIlS of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be modified
oramended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only after approval of such

modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and
WHEREAS, The State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and conditions in the
Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

Amendment and Modification of Agreement: The Agreement is amended and modified ds follows:

1. Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and modified as
follows: ' '

A) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking the

current sum of $117,140.00 and inserting in place thercof the total sum of
$287,140.00 wherever it occurs.

B) Exhibit C — Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking the
current sum of $117,140.00 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
$287,140.00.

Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking the current sum of $5,857.00 and
inserting $14,357.00 for administrative costs. ’

Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking the current sum of $111,283.00 and
inserting $272,783.00 for program costs.

2. Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified bj the Terns
-and Conditiofis of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder shall remain in full
force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement as it

existed immediately prior to this Amendment.
CONTRACT AMENDMENT OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year fust above
written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Office of jtrategicl ftiatives

~
.

By' .

Jarch:hicoiné, Director

Tri-County C_muﬁ:’ jon Program, Inc.

L ,'TChie‘f Executive Officer

stateof _New Yamponee,

County of { posy

On this \ ; ) dayof _ (R o<\ . 2021, before mc, Matawv
the undersigned officer, personally appearcd who
acknowledged himself/herself to be thel o of Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc., a corporation, and that he/she béing authorized so to do, executed the foregoing

instrument for the purposes contained therein

'

CHRISTINA MORIN, Notary Public
State of New Hampshire
My Commission Expires December 19, 2023

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OF THE AJTTORNEY GENERAL

Assistant Attomey General

S[gfzo

Date:

1 hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Govemor and Council of the State of
New Hampshire at their meeting on ,2021.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

Title:

TCCA BWP21 Amendment Contractor IDiliaE: & ™~

Grant: # G-210INHLIEA Date: =]
CFDA: 93.568
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardrer, Secretary.of Siate of the State of New Hampshire, do heréby centify that TRECOUNTY COMMUNITY
ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (T RI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshlrc Nonprofit Corporation registered 1o transact business-in
New Hampshirc on May 18, 1965..1 further centify that all lees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s officé have

been received.and is in good stasiding as far sis this office is concemed.

Business ID: 63020
Centifteate Number: 0004969574

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF,
. T hereto set my ‘hand ‘and cause.w bé dffixed
‘the Seal-of the State of New Hampshire,
this 3]st day of July A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner .
Sccretary. of State




CERTIFICATE OFAUTHORITY

(@] , Board Chair of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

1, Ay
- (Nark) ” b {Corporation name)
(Hereinafier the “Corporation™), a New Hampshire_ . ... corporation, hereby certify that: (1) 1 am the duly

(State)
elected and acting Board Chair of the Corporation; (2) 1 maintain and have custody and am familiar with the
minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such
books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on __9/29/2020, such authority

. (Date) -~
to be in force and effect untilmm,ﬂgoa\ : :

{Contract termination date)

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to exccute and deliver on behalf of the
Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

Jeanne Robillard. . . - Chief Executive Officer

{Namc) . ' " (Position)
Randall Pilotte~ . ... ... . Chief Financial Officer .
T T (Name)” - (Position)

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with .. New Hampshire . -

(State of incorporation)
law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been modified, amended or rescinded
and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof.

(6) I hereby understand that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above cusrently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation on contracts
with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations arc expressly stated herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto sct my hand as the Board Chair of the corporation this

\D  dayof 1’4\?(\\ N




ACORD
e CERTIFICATE OF LIABI

DATE (MWDOITYYY)
01!2312021

LITY INSURANCE

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY-AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIF!CATE HOLDER TH|S
i CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND

OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF [NSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provrslons or bo endorud
tf SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an andorsemeont. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rlghu to the cerﬁﬂcmo holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). . . .

‘F PRODUCER - .o e o WTRCT Andrea Nlcklin L B . .

'FIAI/Cross Insurance o~ , (603) 669-2218 | T ey, (603) 6454334

H - e — =

11100 Eim Stresl ADORESS: anickh@nrosugency.oom - . :

f! ) IIURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAKC §
|iManchestar — NH 03101 msuRERA: Phlindoiphia indemnity Ins Co 18058
‘F'msuren - msurern: Granite State Heatth Care and Human Services Self- o

' Tri-County Communily Action Program, Inc INSURER C : _ -

30 Exchange Streel [ sureR D : e ] .

| | msurer E: s e e
L Borlin ] NH 03570 | sumene ) S e (S

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  20-21 All21-22 WC REVISION NunaER — T

[T THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TC THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD ™

" INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 15 SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

D(CLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF, SUCH POLICIES, UMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

WERT ™ Type oF ssuraMCE e POLICY NUMBER. MMIDOAYYY) | (MDONYYY) . uMTS
¢ commencut caneracuany |- . | T | eacoccurrence . {3 1:000.000
- : (TAACE TORERTED
| cLamis mace [E occuR PREMISES (Ea oocumwnce)’ . 13- 100000
| 1. ! | MED EXP Ay one parsont _|' 5.000"
Al | ] PHPK2150055 07/0172020 | 0710172021 [ pecomin s A ADV IRY "% v.000000
| GENY AGGREGATE LOWIT APPLIES PER: . s GENERALAGGREGATE | 3 3:000.000
1 X pover || €& D Loc ’ ! probucTs . compior acc | 3 3:000.000
—. : ‘ )
.| omvEr: . RSN N Y| SN . - '
: — —— T T - [ COMBIED SGLE LM |3 1
LA_mpuoaumuw i sosenn” — __|'s 1.000,000
| any auTo l : i BODILY INJURY (Per parson) | 3
|| owmneD ‘SCHEDULED ;
A 1| suros ory SLTOS PHPK2150050 070172020 071’01[2021: BODILY INJURY (Per accident} | § e
—| HRED ‘ : ! DAMAGE 3
L] Auvos ony |AITOS ONLY ! o } : -
I ] ) {[ Underinsured motorist ~ 5 1,000,000 " 77
| |umsremaus | X occur i ‘ " | eEnsccuRREnes T | ¢ 2.000.000
A D excessims [ | camsannoe |, PHUBT28176 07/01/2020 | O7/012021 | ,corEcaTE s 2.000.000
oo '] <] aErenmon s 10000 | " ‘ . ! E—— 3
' | WORKERS COMPENSATION * - i Fg :
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YiN ) (2 e 1L [, 7,000,500
B | exCL e TVE nial HCHS20210000428 (3a.) NH 020172021 | 02/01/2022 fELEACHACCIOENT o 8 o0
(Mandatory tn NH) “ ELDI.SEASE EAEMPLOYEE. 3. 1000000
i " "¢ 1,000,000 .
SCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow i | €L DisEAsE - POLICY LIMIT [000.000 .
. . 1 ~ " '|Each'Océurrence T [7 T 1,000,000 T
Professional Liability | : ;
A ' PHPK2150055 07/0%/2020 | 07/01/2021 | Aggregate . 3,000,000
[

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

Refer 1o policy for exclusionary endorsements and speclal provisions.

’ DESCRJPT”N OF OPERATIONS l LOCATIOKSI'VEHELES MCORD 101, Additional Remarks Schodl.l. may be attsched H more space s nmir.d’}

CANCELLATION

NH Office of Strategic Initlatives

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

"ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

107 Pleasant Street
Johnson Hall

Concord NH 03301

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights'reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




STATE OF NEW HAMPSH1
OFFICE OF STRATEGIC lNlTlATIVgs-E 920 o1 4:01 RCuD 60

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall
Concord, NH 03301-3834

DIVISION OF PLANNING

.. Telephone: (603) 271-2155
CHRISTOPHER T. SUNUNU . . DiVISION OF ENERGY
GOVERNOR Fax: (603)271-2615 www.nh.gov/osi
November 30, 2020 APPROVED BY GOVERNOR
_ , & COUNCIL ON:  12/16/2020
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu AGENDA ITEM: #30
and the Honorable Council PO#1077847

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) to enter into 8 SOLE SOURCE contract with Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. (VC #177195), Berlin, NH, in the amount of $117,140.00 to supplement the
Agency’s Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP), effective January |, 2021, through December 31, 2021,
upon approval of Governor and Executive Council. 100% Federal Funds. (LIHEAP-US DHHS)

Funding is available in the following éccount, contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds in the operating budget, as follows:

Office iceic Injtiativ e istance FY2021

01-02-02-024010-77050000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $117,140.00
EXPLANATION.

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of the US Department of Energy's (US DOE) grant guidance

(10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the Weatherization Assistance Program
due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of services to clients eligible for WAP, and their
historical performance delivering the weatherization program.

0S| is responsible for administering New Hampshire’s statewide Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP).

The objective of the program is to reduce energy consumption and the impact of energy costs in low-income

households. Priority is given to the elderly, disabled, households with children, and households with high-energy
_ usage. The funding in this contract will supptement WAP work.

The Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP-US DHHS) funding in this contract will allow the
Community Action Agency (CAA) to effectively and cfficiently increase the number of homes receiving heating
system improvements and/or full weatherization services in the program year which begins on January 1, 2021.
OS5I estimates that approximately eighteen (18) additional homes will be assisted in the CAA’s service area as a
result of the supplemental funding,.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this contract.

smc(full@bmincd,

Lot i

G&C 121672020
TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019):

H_Q_u_cg This agrecment’ ‘and gl of its unhchm.cnls shall became public upon submissier to” Goversior and
Executive Council for'approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be cleatly idéntifi ed m the 2gency and agreed to in writing pnor 10 signing the contract..

_ AGREEMENT
‘The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree ¥ follows?
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION. - : -
1.1 ‘State Agency Name ) 1.2 State Agency Address
Office of Strategic Initiatives ‘107, Pleasani Street, Johnson Hall:
Concord, Néw Hampshire 03301
1.3 - Contmactor Nashe: ' 14 Commctar Address )
" Tri-County, Community Action Pm!;_rum. Inc. 60 Exchmgc Strect, Bedlin, NH 03570
15 Contractor Phone 15 -Account Number | 1.7 Complétion Date 18 Prics Limitation
Number 1 01:02-02:024010-77050000- | Docember 31, 2021 $117,140.00
(603) 752:7001 500587 02BWP21 _
1.9 Contracting Offfcer for State Agency 1710 State Ageocy Telophone Namber
‘Kirk Stone, Weatherization Progrim Manager (603)271-2155
I.Il'ConmﬁSign;um ST ‘ 112 chalﬂT:ﬂcofConmmrSmnmy

Jeannd Robillard, Cln:f Exccutive Officer

1.14 Name and Title of Siats ,_\wy.s@m

\bre.cﬂ CJMCO\M& OLV‘C,C‘OEP

1.13 !

1.5 Appmvnl bytheN I-L Dcparumnt cf Admmlstmuon, DMszon of Personnel (if applicable): 7
- By: Direstor, On;

H_ZY'ZaZo

BY-

1.17 Approval by the Gommrand Execnuvc Councd (if applicable)”
G&CTtem number:: G&CMecingDae:  DEC.1-8 20007

_ DEPUTY SECRETARY OF STATE.

Page'lof 4 -
Contractor Initials \_SL

‘Date ¥ “Q lad.



2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hompshire, acting through the ageocy identified in block 1.1
(“Statc™), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
{“Contractor'"} 10 perform, and the Contraclor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attsched EXHIBIT B which is meorporsted
herein by reference (“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding eny provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Geovernor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, end all oblipations of the parties hercunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor end Exocutive
Council spprove this Agrecment 8y indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become cffective on the date the Agroement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 (*Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performad by the Contrectar prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed nf the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not become
cffcclive, the State shall have no lisbility to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
‘Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete sll Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

. 4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
withoun limitation, the contisuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued eppropristion of
funds affected by any state or federol legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminaies or otharwise modifics the
approprietion or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part In 0o cvent shall the Statc be lisble for eny payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
cvent of o reduction or termination of approprinted funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold paymen! until such funds
become aveilable, if ever, and ghall have the right 1o reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contreclor notice of such reduction or teminstion.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source (0 the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

S. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particulariy described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorpomated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the Stnte of the contract price shall be the
" only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for ell
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

Page 2 of 4

compensation Lo the Coatractor for the Services. The Statc shall
have oo liability 1o the Contractor other than the contraci price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offsct from eny amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement thosc
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or eny other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no’
event shall the total of all paymeants suthorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS! EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In comnection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all epplicable statutes, laws,
regulations, end orders of federl, state, county or municipal
euthorities which impese any obligation or duty upon the
Cootractor, inchuding, but not limiled to, civil rights end cqual
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
fundad in any part by moaies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the Unilad States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contrector shall also comply with all epplicable intellectual

- property laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
beceuse of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination

6.). The Contractor agroes to permit the State or Unitod States
access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascerteining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and’ conditions of this
Agreement. -

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnc)
nocessary (o perform the Serviccs. The Contractor warrents thal
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
poaform the Services, and shall be properly Jicensod and
otbherwise euthorized to do so under all applicable laws,

7.2 Ualess otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, end for a period of six (6) months afler the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall oot hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corparetion with whom il is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is & State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
edministration or performance of this Agreement.  This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting OQfficer specified in block 1.9, or hig or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispule concemning the intopretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Datc

Contractor Initials,..\yk_’




8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any onc or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shell constitute an eveat of default hereunder (“Event
of Defsutt"");

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schodule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any repont required beramder, and/or

8.1.3 failure to perform eny other covenant, term or condition of

this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurmence of any Event of Default, the Statc may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
o greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the potice; and if the Event of Default is not tiroely cured,
terminate this Agrecment, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination,

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all paymeats 10 be made under Lhis
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contrest price
which would otherwise accrus to the Cootrector during the
period from the date of such notice until such time es the State
detamines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor n written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or

§.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defaull, teat the Agreement as breached, tomimate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remodies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State 10 enforce any provisions hereof after
eny Event of Default shall be deemad a waiver of its rights with
regerd to that Event of Defeult, or any subsequent Event of
Defsuli. No express failure 1o enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed & waiver of the right of the State to enforoe each and
all of the provisions bereof upon eny further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.) Notwithstanding paragraph 8, thc Statc may, al its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for eny reason, in whole or
in pert, by thinty (30) days written potice 1o the Contraclor that
the State is excrcising its option to terminate the Agreement

92 In the event of an carly termination of this Agreement for
any rcason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contructor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contrecting Officer, not later than fifieen (15) days aRer the date
of termination, & report (“Termination Report™) deseribing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attachad
EXHIBIT B. lo eddition, at the Statc's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of carly termination, develop and

Page 3 of 4

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
FRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data”™ shall mean atl
information and things developed or obained during the
performance of, or ecquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, el studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproduclions, drowings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouls, nolcs,
Iettcrs, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All daia and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.

10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be govaned by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing !sw. Disclosure of data requires
prior written epproval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inthe
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects

an independent contractor, and is peither an agent nor an
cmployec of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of ils
officers, employecs, agents or members shall have suthority to
bind the Smte or receive any benefits, workers® compensation or
other erooluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwiso transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fiftoen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and & written consent of Lhe Stete. For purposes
of this paragroph, a8 Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. “Change of Control™ means (&) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related ansactions in
which 8 third party, together with its affiliates, becomey the
direct or indirect awner of fifty percent {50%) or more of the
voting sharcs or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially el
of the assets of the Contrector.

12.2 Nens of the Savices shall be subcontrected by the
Contractor without prior written notice end consent of the State.
The Stete is entilled 10 copies of all subcontrects and assignment
egreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment apreement to which itis oot a
party.

13, INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contrecior shall indemnify and hold harmless the Stats, its
officers and employees, from and against any and ell clrims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patcal or copyright infringement, or other claims esserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise oul of) the acts or omission of the
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Contrector, or subcontractors, including bul not Limited (o the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be linble for eny costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
comtained shall be deemned 1o constitute s weiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covensnt in paragreph 13 shall swvive the
termination of this Agrecment. '

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall, at:ulolcapmsc obtain and
continuously maintain in force, end shall require any

subcontractor or assipnse to obtain and maintain in force, the

following insurance:

14.1. lwmmacmlgene:ﬂlmbmtymsu:mougunslallchmxs
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of oot
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregeic
or excess; and

14,12 special causc of loss covernge form covering all property
subject to subparegraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replecement value of the property.

14.2 The palicies described in subparagreph 14,1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements epproved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issuod by insurers licensed in the State of Now Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall fumnish to the Conmtracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successar, a certificate(s) of
incurance for all imsursnce required under this Agreement
Contrector shall also furnish to ths Contrecting Officer ideatified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) 'days prior 1o the expimtion dste of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurmnce and eany
rencwals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor egroes, cortificy
and warrents that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requircments of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (" Workers®
Compensation”).
15.2 To the exteni the Contrector is subject to the requircments
of N.-H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contrector ghall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and mnintain,
_psyment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the persom praposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers’
ion in the manncr described in NJH. RSA chapter
281-A end any epplicable rencwal(s) thereof, which shall be
stteched and ero incorpornted berein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contrecior, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to.the other party
shall be deemed to have beea duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in & United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein,

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing sigoed by the
parties hereto énd only after epproval of euch amendmem,
waiver or discharge by the Govemnor and Exccutive Council of
the Statc of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursusni to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall

be governed, interpreted and construcd in accordance with the'

laws of the State of New Hampshire, end is binding upon end
mures 1o the benefit of the parties end their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreeroent is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutun! intent, &nd oo rule
of construction ghall be applied egainst or in favor of any parry.
Any sctions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought md
maistained in Now Hampshire Superior Cournt which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof,

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the cvent of a conflict
betwoen the terms of thig P-37 form (a8 modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments end amendment theroof, the tenms of the
P-37 (ns modified in EXHIBIT A} shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties herelo do not iatead to
benefit any third partics and this Agreement shall oot be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, end the words contmined therein
thall in no wey be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. Inthe event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by & court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federa! law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreemeat, which may be
exccuted in a number of counterpasts, each of which shall be
deemed an onginal, constitutes the entirc agreement and
understanding between Lhe parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter

which might arise under epplicable State of New Hampshire hereof.
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.
Page 4 of 4 '
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
EXHIBIT A
SPECIAL PROVISIONS

2 CFR 200, as amended, (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Foderal Awards), 10 CFR 440 dated February 1, 2002 (Weatherization Assistance
Program), the New Hampshire Weatherization Assistance Program (INHW AP) Statc Plan, NHWAP
Policies and Procedures Manual (P&PM), and NHWAP Field Guide are all considered part of this
contract by inclusion and shall be legaily binding and enforceable documents under this contract.
The Office of Strategic Initiatives (QSI) reserves Lhe right (o use any Jegal remedy at its disposal
including, but oot limited to, disallowance of costs, withholding of funds, suspension of agency
personnel, disbarment of agency personnel, disbarment of agencies and/or subcontractors from
present or future contracts, and such other legal remedies as determined to be appropriate by the New
Hampshire Department of Justice in the caforcement of rules and regulations pertaining to the
Weastherization Program.

An audit shall be made at the end of the Contractor’s fiscal year in accordance with 2 CFR 200,
Subpart F - Audit Requirements. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and
expenditures by contract or grant sumber of ali expenditures during the Contractor’s fiscal year. The
Contractor shall utilize a competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least

every four years.

The eudit report shall include a schedule of the prior year's questioned costs along with a response
regarding the cusrent status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all management letters
written as a result of the audit along with the audit report shall be forwarded to OS] within one month
of the time of receipt by the Contractor accompanied by an action, if applicable, for each finding or
questioned cost.

The following paragraph shall be added to pasagraph 9 of the general provisions:

“9.3 All negotiated contracts (cxcept those of $5,000 or less) awarded by OSI to the Contractor shall
allow OSL, DOE, Health and Humap Services, the Comptroler General of the United States, or any
duly authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the
Subgrantee or their subcontractors, which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purpose of
making zudils, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.”

The costs charged under this contrect shall be determined as allowable under the cost principles )
detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principals. .

Program and financial records pestaining to this contract shall be retained by O51 and the Contractor

for 3 (lhree) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for awards that are ’
rencwed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of the quarterly or annual financial :
report, as stated in 2 CFR 200.333 - Retention Requirements for Records. E

CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required rcports and reimburscment requests shall
be submitted to the State within forty-five (45) days of the completion date (Agreement i!’
Block 1.7).

Exhibit A
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7. The following paragraphs shall be added to the general provisions:

“25. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING. It is understood and agreed between (he parties
thzt no portion of the “Grant” funds may be used for the purpose of obtaining additional federal funds
under any otber law of the United States, except if authorized under that law.”

“26. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS. The following are attached and signed: Centification
Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements; Certification Regarding Lobbying; Certification
Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Respoasibility Matters; Certification Regarding the
Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance; Certification Regarding Environmeatal Tobacco
Smoke; Assurance of Compliance Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs; and
Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Compliance.™

“27. COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT. Al contracts and subgrants in excess of $2,000.00 for
construction or repair shall include a provision for compliance with Copcland “Anti-Kickback™ Act
(18 USC 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act
provides that each contractor, subcontract or subgrantoe shall be prohibited from inducing, by any
means, any person employed in the construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up any
part of the compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The subgrantee should report all
suspected violatioas 1o OSIL.” '

|

*28. PROCUREMENT. Subgrantec shall comply with ail provisions of 2 CFR 200 Subpart D — Post
Federal Award Requircments — Procurement Standards with special empbasis on financial
procurement (2 CFR 200 Subpart F — Audit Requirements) and property managemeol (2 CFR 200
Subpart D - Post Federal Award Requirements — Property Standards.)” :

Exhibit A
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
EXHIBIT B
SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., hereinafter “the Contractor,” agrees to utilize the
Building Weatherization Program (BWP) funds, which are the subject of this contract and which have
their origin in the federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LTHEAP), to provide cligible
clients with weatherization services, including heating system repair and replacement services, which
meet the requirements and standards for LIHEAP weatherization work as modified and pproved in the
FY2] New Hampshire LIHEAP State Plan. In addition, all work completed using BWP funds will be in
accordance with the fiscal requirements of regulations set forth in 2 CFR 200 as amended, and will be
guided and implemeated as directed by the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) in this contract and,
from time lo time, in BWP Subgrantee Notices or other communications. The Contractor agrees o
revisc BWP pructices and procedures to incorporate instructions frorn OSL

Contractor agrees to incorporate changes to the NH Building Weatherization Program as prescribed by
OS] to improve program delivery. Contractor further agrees to perform all weatherization services in &
manner that will successfully interact with utility administered energy efficiency programs for low
income houscholds in order to provide the best colleborative services for those households.

2. This BWP contract period, to be known as “BWP21,” will commence on January 1, 2021, and will have
a completion date of December 31, 2021, subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive
Council.

3. BWP funds, which are the subject of this contract, shall not be expended for bealth and safety purposes.
However, in projects where BWP moncy is used without any federal Weatherization Assistance
Program (WAP) money involved - in other words, where there is no money for the installation of health
and safety measures — then that BWP project may include the cost of incidental repair measures (see the
NH Policies and Procedures Manual) if, by 50 doing, the cumulative SIR for the entire project is not
brought down to below 1,

4. No portion of the BWP funding in this contract is set aside for training and technical assistance
(T&TA). However, Contractor may choose to expend some or all of the designated administrative
funds on T&TA activitics. Appropriate back-up end justification for the use of those funds will be
required by OS] prior to reimbursement. :

S. During the contract period, the Contractor sgrees to complete weatherization services on the number of
units that is the result of dividing the Contractor's PY21 BWP allocation by $6,500. OSI understands
that the actual number of BWP completions will likely differ from that number duc to the

. unpredictability of heating system costs, etc., but OSI expects to see monthty BWP payment requests
from the Contractor in order to mooitor BWP spending progress. Unit completions will be done to the
standards and expectations presented in LIHEAP weatherization guidance, this contract, and the NH
WAP Policies and Procedures Manual, 2019 edition, section on BWP management.

8. The pumber of dwelling units and the amount of funds to be expended shall conform o the
provisions of this contract. OSI reserves the right to review progress under this contract at any
time and may utilize information from such reviews to alter dwelling unit goals and funds to be
expended. '

Exhibit B
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b. All funds provided to the Contractor under this agreement must be expended by December 31 ,
2021. '

6. Effective April 1, 2015, all work performed under the federal Weatherization Assistance Program
(WAP) in New Hampshire must meet the minimum specifications defined in the US Department of
Energy's Quality Work Plan (QWP) and the associated Standard Work Specifications (SWS). While
BWP work is to be managed mostly under DOE rules, and is therefore not subject to all of the same
specifications and requirements as WAP work, Contractor will manage BWP work in a manner which
provides clients with weatherization outcomes gimilar to those achieved under WAP guidance whenever
possible. The occasions when WAP rules must apply to BWP work are set out in this documeat

(Exhibit B).

7. Client eligibility for BWP-funded weatherization work should genemally be the same as for WAP-
funded weatherization work: client income is to be no greater than 200% of the federal poverty
guidetines (FPG). However, because the LIHEAP eligibility income ceiling is higher than the WAP
ceiling (LIHEAP funds may be expended on clients with incomes at or below 60% of New Rampshire’s
median income, which, in 2020, is an amount higher than 200% FPG), Contractor may utilize BWP
funds with clients who meet the LIHEAP income guidelines. If the project is to be in any part funded
using WAP funds, however, then the client’s income must be no greater than 200% FPG.

8. BWP money may be “leveraged” (used in combination) with any other weatherization funding source.
If WAP/DOE moncy is used in o dwelling weatherization project, that project must be completed to
WAP standards and be approved as “WAP complete, ready for reimbursement™ by a certified Quality

Control Inspector.

9. BWP moncy may be used for cither full dwelling weatherization upgrades or for heating system
improvements alope. Contractor is obligated under this contract to expend at least 50% of the
contracted BWP amount on heating sysiem repairs and/or replacements.

a. The PY21 BWP package of forms (see item 12b, below) for reporting BWP expenditures will
include columns to make clear whenever BWP money was used:
i. for restoration of heating services (repair or replacement of inopereble heating

equipment),

ii. for prevention of bealing system service loss (repair or replacement to avoid
approaching failure), or

iii. for supplementing or fully supporting a whole house weatherization project, with space
to report when heating system wark paid for with BWP funds is part of that whole

bouse upgrade.

10. The maximum amount of BWP money lo be spent on any one dwelling project is $8,000. If the BWP
budget for any one project must exceed that amount, & waiver must be received from OSI. OSI will
review all waiver requests promptly and wi)l provide approval when possible. However, applying the
expenditure guidelines in the FY2] NH LIHEAP State Plan, OS] will not approve total BWP
expenditurcs oo any onc dwelling weathcrization project that exceed $12,000. This total is cumulative,
summing the BWP expenditures made during all visits to that dwelling.

11. BWP production includes:

a. Weatherization upgrades which are cammensurate with a work plan developed from a thorough
dwelling energy audit and a TREAT model prepared by a qualified (BPl-certified) Building

Exhibit B
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Analyst or Energy Auditor or Quality Control Inspector who has developed the work plan (the
energy conservation measures — ECMs — to be installed) using cither the “benefit/cost ratio”™
(B/C) methodology as defined by the utilitics’ Home Encrgy Assistance (HEA) program or the
“savings to investment ratio” (SIR) methodology as defined by the US DOE for use in WAP.
The SIR methodology must be used when the project will include et least one ECM which is to
be paid for with WAP funds.
Final inspections which determine: _
i. whether the project's wark plan was appropriate and complete, taking into account the
methodology — B/C or SIR —used by the energy suditor to select the ECMs to be
installed, the pre-weatherization condition of the building, etc.

ii. whether that appropriate work plan was fully and effectively implemented in the
dwelling, providing the client with a comprehensive energy-saving weatherization
oulcome.

In projects where BWP money is used alongside WAP money in the same dwelling, that project
must be completed using the WAP rules and standards, including the installation of only those
measures which individually achieve an SIR equal to or greater than 1, the use of a certified
Quality Control Inspector to pexform the final inspection, etc.
In projects where no WAFP money is involved, the final BWP inspection may be performed by a
person holding a current BP[ certification in et lcast one of the following arcas: Building
Analyst, Energy Auditor, or Quality Control Inspector.
Because BWP money is not WAP moncy, BWP money may be used in weatherization upgrades
to dwellings which have reccived WAP-funded or BWP-funded upgrades since Septernber of
1994 by presenting a waiver request to OSI. However:

1. re-weatherization should be done sparingly, remembering that there are thousands of

potentiaf clients who have received no weatherization services at all;

ii. care should be taken, as atways, to avoid evea the appearance of favoritism;

jiii. WAP money cannot be part of the leveraging done on re-weatherized dwellings which
received the benefit of at least some WAP dollars in the first round of wealherization
work done;

iv. all BWP-funded second visits to previously weatherized dwellings, whether that
weatherization work was done with WAP ar BWP or HEA funds, must be preceded by
receipt of an approved waiver from OSL

12. The tracking of BWP jobs will include:

Contractor preparation and maintensnce of & client file on every BWP job. Contractor will
utilize a filing protocol which allows recovery of the file when checking future jobs against
previous weatherization work performed at that address, etc., cven if no WAP money was used.
Futurc CAP agency WAP Directars nead to be able to check on weatherization work completed
in dwellings, even when WAP money was not involved.

The use of a separate BWP reimburserent request package/spreadsheet supplied by OSI1. All
jobs with any BWP money invested must be submitted for reimbursement on the BWP set of
forms. If a particular job also includes the use of any WAP money, then that job will have 1o be
submitted for WAP reimbursement as well, using the WAP reimbursement request forms
already in use. Therefore, if a single weatherization job uses funds from two different
weatherization funding sources managed by OS], that job must be submitted to OSI twice in
order for it to be reimbursed for the correct amount from each source.

13. This agreement coasists of the following documents: a completed P-37 form, and Exhibits A, B, C, D,
E,F,G, H, ] and J. All exhibits are incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth herein.
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NEW BAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
EXHIBIT C
PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of tho satisfactory performance of the services set forth in Exhibit B, the State agrees to
pay the Contractor, Tri-County Conununity Action Program, Inc., up lo the total sum of:

$117,140 {which hercinafter is referred (o as the “Contracted Amount™), of which
$ 5,857 is the maximum 10 be spent on BWP related administrative costs,
$111,283 (tke balance) to be spent on weatherization ectivitics (Program Activity).

Drawdowns from the total contracted amount will be paid to the Contractor only after written
documentation of cash need is submitied to OSL.  Disbursement of the contracted amount shall be made
in accordance with the procedures established by the State and 2 CFR 200.305(b) on an advance basis;
timited to minimum ermounts needed; and be timed 1o be in accordance with the actual, immediate cash
requirements of the Contrector in carrying out the purpose of the program. The Contractor must make
timely paymeats to (sub)contractors in accordance with the contract provisions. Contractor shall submit a
payment request to OSI for each moath of the contrect period using the forms to be provided by OSI for
that purpose. Payment requests from Contractor shall be received at OSI no later thao the 15* day of each
month or the first business day following the 15%day.

Administrative costs are provided in order to support 2 specified number of unit completions at minimal
standards. Adminisirative funds may be pro-rated by OSI if production unit completions do not meet
expected production goals.

OS! will also be allowed, as & function of its administrative oversight, to modify contracted budget
amounts as neocssary to ensure the efficient and effective operation of the contract as long as these
modified expenditures do not exceed the total “Contrected Amount™ as specified above.

All obligations of the State, including the continuance of any payments, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds for the services to be provided.

Exhibit C
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Frec Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.5.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions execute the following Centification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

This centification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 ¢t seq.). The January 31, 1989, regulations
were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990, Federal Register (pages 21681-21691),.and require
certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees end sub-contractors), prior to award, that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630{c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference,
sub-grentees and sub-contractors) that is a State may clect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency
awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form
should send it to:

Director, New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee centifies that it will or will ooniiupc to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing s statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

{b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

{2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring
in the workplace;

{¢) Making it 2 requirement thet each employee lo be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (s);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
emmployment under the grant, the employce witl—

(1) | Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of kis or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statutc occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

Exhibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, coot’d

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

{c) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days efier receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, 10 every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicied employee was working, unless the Federal agency
has designated @ central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of cach affected grant;

U] Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
. subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so coavicted:

m Taking appropriaie personael action against such an employce, up 1o and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

@) Requiring such employee o pasticipate :amfactonly in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federa), State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropnate agency,;

(g Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-froc workplace lhmugh implementation
of paregrephs (a), (b}, (¢}, (d). (¢), and (f).

(B)  The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant,

Place of Performance (strect eddress, city, county, State, zip code) (list each location)

30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NH 03570

Check [ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. January 1, 2021, 10 December 31, 2021
Contractor Name Period Covered by this Certification

Jeanne Robillard, Chicf Exccutive Officer
Name and Titlc of Authorizeq Contragtor Representative

Vi /1&1:2::599_

\Qtracmr Representative Signature ] Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31
U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LLOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
US DEPARTMENT OF BOMELAND SECURITY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Community Services Block Grant
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program
HRRP Program
BWP Program

Contrect Pariod ' Jaouary 1, 2021, to December 31, 2021

The undersigned certifics, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behall of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congresa, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contrect, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor).

(2) If eny funds other than Federal appropristed funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attcmpting to influence an officer or employce of any agency, 8 Member of Congress, an
officer or enmployee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document
for sub-awards of all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and -
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or ¢otering into this lransection
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required centification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not leys than §10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive Officer

b

Conchpméntativc S\gnature Contractor’s Representative Title
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Jii / /2 / 0
Contractor Name Date

Exhibits D thru H
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'NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with Lhe provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension,
and Otber Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and ).12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: '

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (oontnct), the prospoctive primary participant is providing the
certification set out below,

(2) The inability of a person to provide the ccmﬁcauon required below mu not nccessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. U nocessary, the prospective partiCipaat shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The cestification or explanstion will be considered in connection
with-the NH Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) determination whether to eater into this transaction. .
However, failure of the prospective primary participant to farnish a certification or an explanation shail
disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which rchnncc was placed when OS]
determined to enler into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant
knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
Government, OS] may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall providc immediate written notice to the OS] agency to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant leams that its certification
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered transaction,”
“participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,”
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a
person who is debarred, suspeaded, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by OSL

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposa.l that it will include the clausc
titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions,” provided by OSL, without modification, in al] lower tier covered transactions and in
all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. '

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or mvoluntanly excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the centification is erroneous. A panmpant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,
check the Noo-procurement List (of excluded parties). ’

'(5) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to excoed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

{10) Except for transactions sutharized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly cnters into 8 lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, dcba:red
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition 10 other remedies
availsble to the Federal government, OSI may lerminate this trensaction for cause or default.

Exhibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Tmnsacﬁons

{11}  The prospective pnmnry pamclpant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and us
principals:

(=) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, décla.rcd ineligible, or voluntanly
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency,

®) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or parforming a public (Federal, State or local) transaction
or & contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or
commission of unbazlcm:nt theft, forgery, bribery, falslﬁcmon or destruction of records,
making false slawmcnts or receiving siolen propcrty

- {¢) ~ are not presently indicied for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
. (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in parngraph (1) (b)
of this certification; and

(d) have not within & three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more pubhc
' transactions {(Federal, State or local) terminated for causc or default.

(12)  Where the prospective primary participant is unable to cestify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall atiech en explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions
(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Pam<:1pants)

By signing and submitting this loWwer tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(2) are no! presently debarred, Suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
cxcluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b))  where the prospective lower tier participast is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shal] attach an explanzation to this proposal (contract).
(

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it wil include this
clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Tncligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covercd transactions end in all solicitations for

lower ticr co»ﬂmn jons.
- Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive Officer

Conlm?:ﬁﬁkep?&scnmtivg Signature. Contractor's Representative Title
Tr-County Community Action Program, Inc. . ' fl I { a'l 0
Contractor Name f _ Date .
Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDINGTHE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Gencral Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
represenlative as idcptiﬁcd in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisioas, to execute the following
certification: -

By signing and submitting this proposal (coutract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicablc provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. -

A"

Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive Officer

M.
ConuncMcpmscntalivc Signature Contractor’s Representative Title
Tri-County Coﬁ;munity Action Program, Inc. U / [12120.
o .Contractor Name ‘Date

Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION
Pablic Law 103-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE.

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or Library services to
children under the age of 18, if the eervices are funded by Federal programs either directly or thmugh State or
local govemmcnts, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee,

The law does not apply to children's services provided in pnvalc residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare .
or Medicaid funds, and portions of fecilitics used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary.penalty of up to
$1,000 per day and/or the imposition of an edministrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

By signing and submitting this application the applicant/grantee certifies that it will comply with the
requirements of the Act.

The applicant/grantee further agrees that it will require the language of this certification be included in any )
subawards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all subgrantees shall certify accordingly.

. \ Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive Officer
ContractdxBepresentative Signature Contrector’s Representative Title
Tn-County Community Action ngmm [nc. i\ , 1a ] 26
Coutmctor Name : Date
Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT 1

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE NONDISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY ASSISTED
, ' PROGRAMS

OMB Burden Disclosure Statement

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, .
including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data
necded, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden
cstimate or agy other agpect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to
Office of Information Resources Management Policy, Plans, and Oversight, Records Management Division, HR-
422- GTN, Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400), U.S. Department of Energy, 1000 independence Avenue,
S.W., Washington, DC 20585; and to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB), Paperwork Reduction
Project (1910-0400), Washington, DC 20503. i '

Tr-County Community Action Program, Inc. (Hercinafter called the "Applicant”) HEREBY AGREES to
comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352), Section 16 of the Federal Enerny
Administration Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-275), Section 401 of the Energy Roorganization Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-
438), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318, Pub. L. 93-568, and Pub. L.
94-482), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975
(Pub. L. 94-135), Title VIL of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 90-284), the Department of Encrgy
Organization Act of 1977 (Pub. L. 95-91), the Energy Conservation and Production Act of 1976, as amended,
(Pub. L. 94-385) and Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1040. In accordance with the above laws and
regulations issued pursuant thereto, the Applicant agrees to assure that uo person in the United States ghall, on
the ground of race, color, nationsl origin, sex, age, or disability, be excluded from participation in, be¢ denied the
benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity in which the Applicant
reccives Federal assistance from the Department of Energy.
Applicability and Period of Obligation
In the case of any service, financial ?i¢ covered employment, equipment, propesty, or structure provided, leased,
or improved with Federal essistance extended to the Applicant by the Department of Encrgy, this assurance
obligates the Applicant for the period during which Federel assistance is extended. In the case of any transfer of
such service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period
during which Federal assistance is extended. If any personal property is 5o provided, this assurance obligates the
Applicant for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property. In all other cases, this
assurance obligatcs the Applicant for the period during which the Federal assistance is cxtendad to the Applicant
by the Department of Encrgy.

Employment Practices

Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Applicant's
employment practices affect the delivery of services in programs of activities resulling from Federal assistance
extended by the Department, the Applicant agrecs not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national
origin, sex, age, or disability, in its employment prectices. Such employment practices may include, but are not
limited to, recruitment, advertising, hiring, layoff or termination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rates of pay,
training and participation in upward mobility programs; or other forms of compensation and use of facilitics.

Subrecipicot Assurance .
The Applicant shall require any individual, organization, or other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or

Exhibit 1
\ Page | of 2

. Initials o ato y | QIBU
Award #G-2002NHLIEA, CFDA #93.563



DOEF 16005 (06-94)
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subleascs for the purpose of providing any service, finaccial aid, equipment, property, or structure o comply
with laws and regulations cited above. To this end, the subrecipient shail be required to sign a written assurance
form; however, the obligation of both recipient and subrecipicnt to ensure compliance is not relicved by the
collection or submission of written assurance forms.

Data Collection and Access to Records

The Applicant agrees to compile and maintain information pertaining to programs of activities developed as a
result of the Applicant's receipt of Federal assistance from the Departmeat of Energy. Such information shall
include, but is not limited to the following: (1) the manner in which services are or will be provided and related
dats necessary for determining whether any persons arc or will be denied such services on the basis of prohibited
discrimination; (2) the populstion eligible to be scrved by race, color, pational origin, sex, age and dasabthty, )
data regarding covered employment including use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving
beneficiaries of the program where necessary to permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable to speak or
understand English; (4) the location of existing or proposed facilitics connected with the program and related
information adequate for determining whether the location has or will have the effect of unnecessanly denying
access to any person on the basis of prohibited discrimination; {5) the preseut or proposed membership by race,
color, national origin, sex, age and disability in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the
program; and (6) any additional written data determined by the Department of Energy to be relevant to the
obligation to assurc compliance by recipients with laws cited in the first paragraph of this assurance.

The Applicant agrees to submit requested data to the Department of Energy regarding programs and activities
developed by the Applicant from the usc of Federal assistance funds extended by the Department of Energy.
Facilities of the Applicant (including the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) and all records, books,
accounts, and other sources of information pertinent to the Applicant’s compliance with the civil rights laws
shall be made available for inspection during normal business hours on request of an officer or employee of the
Dcpartment of Energy specifically authorized to make such inspections. [nstructions in this regard will be
provided by the Director, Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Energy.

This essurance is given in coasiderstion of and for the purpose of obtaining any and al] Federal grants, loans,
contracts (¢xcluding procurement contracts), property, discounts or other Federal assistance extended after the
datc hereof, to the Applicants by the Department of Energy, in¢luding installment payments on account after
such data of application for Federal assistance which are approved before such date. The Applicant recognizes
and agrees that such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the representations and agreements
made in this assurance, and that the United States shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this
assurance. This assurance is binding on the Applicant, the successors, transferees, and assignecs, as well as the
person(s) whose signatures appear befow and who arc authorized 1o sign this assurance on behalf of the
Applicant.

‘ Applicaot Certification

The Applicant certifies that it has complied, or that, within 90 days of the date of the grant, it will comply with
all applicable requirernents of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.5 (a copy will be fumished to the Applicant upon written

request to DOE).

— -

Jeanne Robillard, CEO  Signature __ N\ VY Date 111920

Tri-Ct;unty Community Action Program, Inc.
60 Exchange Strect, Berlin, NH 03570
(603) 752-7001

Exhibit I
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT J.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federsl Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees
of individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010,
to report on data related to executive compcensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or
more. If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total aweard
equal to or over 525,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the
award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives must report the following information for any subaward or
contract award subject 10 the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
. 4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
$) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity :
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues arc from the Federal government, and thoss
revenues are greater than $25M annuslly and ’
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made,

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees 1o comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information}, and further
agrees to have the Coatractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed informiation as outlined above to the: New
Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal

Financial Acpquntability apd Transparency Act. ;
. M . Jeanne Robillard, Chief Exocutive Officer

(Contractor Rebresentative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Ml ) |a}a)
(Coatractor Name), ) (Date)
Exhibit J E
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT J
FORM A

As the Contrecior identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses 1o the
betow listed questions are true and eccurste.

1. The DUNS number for your entityis: (O3 (3‘!}5 IO 8

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federul contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agrocments; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federel contructs, subcontructs, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

_E*No ez = YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the publit; have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.5.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Intemal Revenue Code of 19867

NO . YBS
If tbe answer to #3 sbove is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, plesse answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly wMtd officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name.: . ) Amount:
Name: . Amount: —.._-.
v b= - J ,
- Name: _._.__. Amount:
Name: ' o - Amount: i,
Name: ... Amount:
Exhibit J
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_State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, Willhem M. Gentner, Secretary of State of the Stase of New Heropshire, do hereby cestify tha TRECOUNTY COMMUNITY
ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) Is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation regluered o transect baginess in
New Hempehire on May 18, 1965, | further oatify that all fnamddocmmreqtdredbylthcam of Stete’s office have
been reccived and bs in good standing &s fbr a3 this office is concemed.

Busineas ID: 63020
Cenificatr Mumnber: 0004969374

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOQF, i
lmommywwmmhtﬂhm I
the Seal of the Sixte of New Hampshire,
this 31st day of July A.D. 2020.

Gk

Willlam M. Gardner
Secrctary of Sute
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CERTIFICATE OFAUTHORITY

I Sandy Alonzo . Board Chair/Vice Presidemt/Cleck/Seerciary of
{Now}

[ri-County Commupity Action Program, Inc. (Mereinofier the C orporalion”), a New I-I‘ampsinirc cunporalion,

hereby cenify thar:

¢

(1) Lam the duly clecied and aciing Board Chair/Vice President/Clerk/Scerctary of the Carporation; {2) | maintain
and have custody-and am famitiar with the minuie hoioks ol the Corporation: (3) | am duly nuthorized 10 issue
cenificates with respect (o the comtents of such books; (41 that 1he Board of Directons aof the Comworation have

authorized, on __9/2072030____. such authorily 16 be in‘force and effect unlil December 31, 2021,
(Da) . (Coniract terminaion dane)

Thic prison(s) holding ihe below listed position{s) are anthorized 107execuie and dediver on behatl af 1he
Corporationt any contract or other instrument for the sale of praducts and services:

Jepnne Robillard Chicl Exceutive Qficer
(Numd . {Pogitim)

Randall Pitoue . Chiel Financinl Ollicer
(Name) ' LPosition)

{5) The meeting of the Bourd of Directors was held in accordance: with New Hampshire
' T Siate of incuquanation

low and the by-luws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been modificd. amended or

rescinded and continues in full force and cffect as of the date hereof,

{6) t hereby understand that Ihlc State of New Hamipshire will reby on this centificate as cvidence thar the
person(s) listed above currenily occupy the pasition(s) indicated and tha they have full authority to bind
the corporafion. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of iy listed individugl to bind
the corporation on contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stuted
herein.

| HAVE HEREUNTO sct my I;:und as the Board.Chair/Vice President/Clerk/Secretury of the corporation

this 12 duy of November . 2020 . ‘
— ch
MOEEEIERMOY

Board Chair/Vice President/Clerk/Sccretary
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ACORD. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE P,

THIS. CERTIFICATE ISASSUED AS A MATTER 'OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS
-CER‘I'IFK‘.ATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE:AFFORDED'BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CON'TRACT BETWEEN THE: ISSUINO INSUR.ER(S}. AIJTHONED
REPRESEHTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTI‘FICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT‘- If the certificsta holder s an ADDITIONAL INSUREIJ the policy{les) must have, ADDITIONAL INBURED provisions or be sndorsed.
H SUBROQATION 18 I'MN'ED luuoct to.the mrm and condm of the pollcy, certsin policies may require an endorsement. A atatement on’
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COVERAGES- CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  20:21 AR Lints REVISION NUMBER:

THIS (S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, mmmusawmn EMMWUMWGMMWWREWTWH&HM
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To ths Board of Directors of :
Tri-County Community Action Program, inc. and Affiliate CERTIFI PIBLIC AOIENTANTS
Berlin, New Hampshtre - . WOLFEBORO « NOKTICIRN
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INDEPENDENY AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financiai-Statements

- We-have audited the accompanying consolidated financlal stalements of Tri-County Community
- Action Program, Inc. and Affillats (New Hampshire nonprofit orgenizations), which comprise the
consolldated statemenis of financial posltion as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the related
conzalidated stataments ol cash fiows and functional expenses for the years then ended, the
relsted consolidated statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2018 and the related

notes to the mrtso!idaleq financial stetements.

Management's Responsiblilty for tho Flnancial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation end feir presenation of these consolidated
financia) stalements in accordance with accounting principles generslly accepted In the United
States of America; this includas the design, impleméntation, and meintenance of inlemal control
‘relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statemsnts that are
free from rnaterial misstatermnent, whether due to-fraud or efror. .

Auditors' Respansibility . )

Our responsibliity is to express an opinion on thase cansolidated finencial stalements based on
our audit; We conducted our audil in accordance with suditing stendards generally accepled in
the United States of America and tha standards applicable to financial audita contained in
Government Auwditing Standards, Issued by the Comptroller General of the United Stetes. Those
standards mquire that we plan and perform the audit 10 obtaln reasongble assurance aboul
whether the consolldated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

i h

An audit involves performing proceduras to obtain audit evidence aboul lhe amounts and
disclosures in the consoldated financial statements. The procedures selected dapend on the
auditors' judgement, inclding the assessment of the risks of materal misstatament of the
consolidated financial etatements, whether dus to fraud or emor. In making those risk
asseasments, the auditor considers intemal contrel retevant to the entily's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolldated financial slatements [n order to design audil procedwres that
are appropriate in the drcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effeciiveness of the entity’s intemal control. Accordingly, wa express no such opinlon. An audit
glso includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the
reasonebleness of significant accounling estimeles made by manegement, as waell as
evaluating the overall presantation of the consolidated financial glatements.

We befieve that the audit aevidence we have obtalned Is sufficiant and appropriate to provide 2
basts for our audit opinton. .

L S




Opinion .
In our oplnion, the consolidated financial stalements referred to above present fairty, in all

mmaterial respects, tha consolldated fingnctal posttion of TA-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affilate as of Juno 30, 2019 and 2018, end s consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes In Hs net essets for the year ended June 30, 2019, In accordance
with accounting principles generally accapted in the Unlted States of America.

Report on Summarized Camparative information .

We have previously audiled Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affliole's 2018
consofidaled financlsl statements, and we expressad an unmodifiad eudit oplnlon on those
consolidatad finenclal statements In our reparl dated October 18, 2018. in our opinion, the
summarized comparative Information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
2018, Is consistent, In all matesis! respects, with the euditad consolidated financlal statements

from which [l has been derived. .

Other Information . -
Our audit was conductsd for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consondated financial
statements as 8 whole. The accompenying schedule of expendlivres of federal ewards, sa
required by Tlte 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulstions (CFR) Part 200, tinform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audlt Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for

purposes of addltional analysis and Is not a required part of the consolidated financlal -

statements. Such information is the responsibility of manegsement and was derived from end
relatas directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the corisolidated
financlal statemants. The Information has been subjscted to the audiling procedures applied In
the audit of the consolidatsd financial statemants ang certain additional procedures, including
- compering and reconclling such information directly Lo the underlying accounting end other
' records used to prepare the consolidated finandal statements or to the consolidated financial
statements thamselvas, and cther edditional procedures In accordance with auditing standanrds
generally eccepted in lhe Unlted States of America. In our opinion, the Informetion is fairly
- gtated, In all materal respects, in retation to the consolidated financial statements as 8 whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

in accordance wih Government Auditing Standards, we have also lesusd our report dated

October 21, 2019, on our consideration of Tl-County Community Actlon Program, Inc.'s Internal
conirot over financial reporting and on our tests of Its compllance with cartaln provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matiers. The purpose of that report Is to
describe the scope of our testing of Intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and

the results of that tssting, and not to provide an opinien on the effectiveness of Tri-County.

Community Action Program, Inc.'s Intamal contro! over financial reporting or on compliance.
" Thet report Is an integral part of an audll performed In accordanca with Government Auditing

Standards In considering Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal contro! over
financial reporling and compllance. . )

Ko erommitit fhintr.

October 21,2018
Nerth Conway, New Hampshire




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 3, 2019 AND 2018
AJSETS

»

CURRENT ABSETS
Cash and cash squivalenis
Resticlad cash
Aocounts recetvable
Property held for eale
Plsdges recetvable -
inveninties
Prepsid expanses

Tota! curen! osaplis

PROFERTY
Property and oquipment
Less accumutsted depraciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS
Reatricied cash

TOTAL'ASSETE
MES

CURRENT LIABILITIES .
Demand nots paynbie
Currant portion of long tarm debl
Currenl portion of capital lease obiigations
Accounts payable
Aocrued compensatod abseances
Accrued salaries
Accrued axpenses
Refundebie edvances
Other Glabilllies

Total current Habiities

LONG TERN DfEBT , .
Long term dsbt, net of current portion
Capha! loase ocblgations, nct of cument portion

Total ksbities

MET ASSETS
Without doner rastrictions
With donur rostriciions
]
Tcl‘zsl net asasts

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASBETS

2019

8
§ 1400760 § 1.320038
569.063 380,602
1,274,083 1,156,857
47,000 :
231,164 212,207
85,886 87.669 -
- 037 —_— 25540
3,858,680 3192,012
12,088,152 . 12,812,889
(5.178.538) (5.203 324)
8,907,617 7,609,385
QMBRg L Susgdy
610863483 £ 14,127.28)
$ $ 516022
148 449 142,733
4870 © 4845
21571 237,276
204,079 203121
210.052 187,508
89,524 431,888
197,157 191,089
508,195 367,168
J.674:707 200123
5,227,835 5,372,037
3356 8226
6,006,087 7,383,393
3,309,192 2,020,057
878 254 817761
4017448 RERZELT

3 10,083,433

$ 19127241

Sce Notes ta Consolidatod Financial Statementn
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CONSOUDATED BTATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2010

YATM PEIOR YEAR SUMMAREZED COMPARATIVE INTDRMATION

Witioul Dano With Donor o 018
Bexirictions Beririctiony Toa) Iots
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Geant snd contracly § 14,074,008 ] 401,108 3 4T84 $ 14,200,000
Progem fuding 1,107 500 1,107,508 1.259,037
Uiy progravme 1,207,103 . 1,287,103 1070901
In-king contritnutions aAs7 - . ATTAD? 151,187
Cortirtarions 210,088 . 230,888 95,03
Fundralzing 30,330 . 0.303 58,5040
Rants! incomo 625.048 825040 879,112
Intornst Incormm &40 04) M
{Lozs) gain on dkpotal Oof property (32.002) - {32.897) 48,487
Lawe on wrise down of propedy beld for sale - (2654%2) [285,492)
Other rovecnm - 190,354 ——— — LN pLhab
Tots! revetnuas and other suppon 17,800,745 401,100 18210851 1828017
MET ABEETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTLONS (210 o2 §849,80 -
Tolal revenuss, other apport, snd .o .
net esaxts rdosrod fom metrictions LS TN ] [139.537) 18210851 10,283 997
FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
frogram Bervieat:
Agancy Fund 950419 950,039 72,70
Heed Stan . 24512%8 2,451,206 24 3
Guandt rxhip .24 767,241 700,009
Transpostalion 18,080 18,080 are. T
Voamiser 118,408 18,408 12,041
Workforce Develanman 354 203 354,283 304,252
Mcxohol mnd Cither Drogs Ta 444,581
Canoll Courtly Desnsl 4T A4 T4T AT 842,037
Stppord Conter 301,650 391,850 amsan
Heoalcx . 714,008 714,065 ST7.78)
Ensrgy snd Communtty Cevelopman 1,704,500 1,763,500 TARD84)
Elder 1,452,013 1402613 1,142,018
Hotslng Garvices L] 2 —_ 172452 178,611
Totst program services 15,835 131 _ 18, 164 16,302 893
Bupporting Actvties:
Censrl and sdminstraive : 1,032,207 - 1,032,207 1,102,448
Fundralzing , D286 - 9,598 800
Totsl supporing activites 1,042,102 e 1,042,102 1,110,474
Totg] funcionel sxpenzss 17872,253 17072253 17443484
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 473,136 (139.637) 133,508, 040,053
HET ABSETS, BEQINNING OF YEAR oA o]yt e L ulednen Hpass
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR AEVeR € Tewkd P __s07da¢ & JFedeR

Saa Motoa to Cormolidatas Flnenclal Staterrends
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
EOR THE YEARD ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2010

CASH FLOWSI FROM OPERATING ﬁ.cmrmss
Chanpe in net azsals
Mhdmnhhummhmmohmimeub
roft cash provided by cperating acivites

Depracistion

Lﬂstwk\)mmmﬂm

Lmonmmuprwmmuu
{incresse) decresss In essnta:

Accounts rocelvedls

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH ALOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Procseds from ditpossl of proporty
Purcheses of property andd aquipment

NET CASK (USED IN) PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Kol repayment on demand.nota payabie

Repayment of long-term dabl |

Repayment of caplial isase obligations
NEY CABH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIEG

1

NET INCREASE O CASH AND GASH EQUIVALENTS

' CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BéOIHNMG COF YEAR

CASH AND CABH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

BUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION; 5
Cah paid during the yeor far. E
Interost

SBUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING
AND FINARCING ACTIVITIES:
Property donsted

Goe Notet to Consolldated Flnancls! S{sterments

2019 il I
$ 313588 0§ B4pB5
447600 403,483
npR (48,487)
265,492
(117,428) 170,337
(16.954) (0,400
1,023 (21,028)
{8.397) - 19,708
{268,134) 235922
{15.705) (281.971)
938 (35,424)
23.444 AT
(42.384) 24,261
6.088 {8.479)
211&! ESI!.!Q)
£43.071 A OSRIE7.
e 78972
- [3AEY)  __ (141,035
QL0 Rer 2
{516.022) (90.412)
(140,288) {311.983)
{4,448) (4,088)
{080,854) L0 k1
1,12 23,338
___taeoan a5
‘A rEmISH, 61,3200
3 e B aHTA
o t 18 4mn

e e




TELCOWN DL RN MEA LY ALl EEQRAAS L

CONSOLIDATED STATEHENT OF FUNCTIONA

. . Carwrl &

Otrect Expaness .
Poyech s WRML B g g 5452305 5 50,457
Peyroll lezes #1d banalts 45.259 3. 1414250 w32
Aswiitanca b cherta 73 6183
Cormumabls eupplioy 36 i 0 11,4%
Spaca couts avd mntis , B 7.0 1. 23719 - 68,568
Daprociston azperos 168,653 in 447569 pS Ly
In-kind sxpended arraer
Cortsullants #ng corfracton 04D ' 318 15029
LG Oes Lo . wa I g b/ 2 o o.708
Tares! and mesings 1N LTt W7 A0 2789
Otfver dricx program costs $5% P 137,098 s,
Focsl and swniy eive 15,811 "W w7 04,740
Buiiding anvd grounds maintananco 10 B 119,348 . k]
Inlorel aapanss AR LT L) 153986 -3
Vehicls oxperae . © AT 199,005
s e 3381 n 23018 ny7
Matrosnance of squapown, snd st b Bt 23.009 Y st
Fhed lres — B} 13817 m

Total Dirwcs Expenaes 2040 FEL T 15835151 1.032.207 -
moinct Exparmet
¥etiract cub - RT-0 R =

Totat Divect & Indirec sapensos et e _IGIEA

Bes Notes to Cansoldated Financ

mmﬂ

3 ] 6008782
151828
6.TRAS4

[ 1R )]
60287
230878
Lie ALY
et
I4244
na3Iw
0,085 176818
197 807
\TRITS
153,018
L1 )
uares
96555
14239

s 1TAT2.253

LY rEs g baketias




CONSCLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL £

EQR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 10, 701

Aggeyfund  Mamd Sty

Dirscl Bzpannes
Pyyrll i @155 § 127508y
Payrc) trees aned beastns DAty 3300 .
Astisurce b clenh Hm
Conurnable tuppies 3 o) 24084,
Spece toaty 2red rerdale , 21.013 1844
Dapreciahon s pense o AN 623 Vg
1 kind aspenced N 12.500 2040 -,
Canguitants snd conireciers . ! 15048 %
Uilnes ' ' 125,551 2y,
Travel and meetngs ! 1,083 501,
Othes direct prgram coets ' “Wi3) L EPR
Flacat g wininistatw ) 249 0.5y
Buldan #na POUNGS Aainensncs ' .22 B25G,
Nires), srparea 12177 x
Vehicls sxperce . 4282 LI
rirwod ' ShH 14dy,
idantere aca of equpment snd rentsl ' L
Furd foos | . t
Taisl Direat Expanass . : 1048014 2,481.9'”
ndiract Eipares
refhact covty : ' ‘s 22480
Capitalized Ex porsees
Lass crplatieation of sssels .. A .
Total Direct & incfireci arpeases pceolbai 4 Gawmb

See Nobes 1o Comaciilalad Financial |
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_Gemall
§ 524040 3§ §TOAT2
120319 164414
85354
843,850 1,219
510,542 2334
£).48)
15,188
NSH4a2 ALY+
8650 1589
ra.m 04T
10280 JA2n
o 509 108158
198,981 10
183,401 M
194,994 .
154315 5,085
127.30 14018
— e UE
16393308 1,102,843
1,902 448 [1,102.4431
Sa)
| BRI LS -

$ 0 amm6n
(XL #E=)
8.538.546
%1.000

50927

aun

351,188

331,504

30,248

po WY

M1 106
0903

152,251

W4.042

WA 061

LA
LEYH
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NOTE 1.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

ORGANIZAT]ON AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES
Orgenizatlon and Principles of Consolidation '

The consolidaled finandal slatements Include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, inc. and lts affiliate, Comsrstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Communily Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing Nerth, Inc.
Al significant intercompany ttems and transactions have been sliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tr-Counly Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Orgentzation) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporstion that aperates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from varlous federsl, state, and local egenciss. Comerstone Houslng
North, Inc. (a New Hampshira nonprofit corporation) was incorporated under the

laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition, construction and operation

of community-based housing for the elderty.

Nature of activities
The Organization’s programs conslst of the foliowing:

Agency

, Tri-County CAP Administration: provides centrel program management
suppord and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
Thie includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audlt services, IT support,
management support, financlal support and central poticy development.

Tr-County CAP Administration s the lialson "between Tr-County
Community Action Program, Inc., Board of Directors and lts programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendore. :

Other raspons{blllueé include the management and aliocation of funding
recelved through a Community Services Block Grent, as well as
management of the Organization’s real estate property.

Head Starf

Head Start provides comprehensiva services to low-Income chiidren and
thelr famllies. Head Stant supports chiidren's growth and devetopment in &
positive learning envionment through @ variety of activities as well as
providing services, which Include in addition to early leaming, health and

- famlly well-belng. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental heafth supporl. Parents and
famllles are supported in echieving their own goals, such as housing
stablilty, continued education, and financia! stability.




_Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide Individualized activities that support their child's growth and
davelopmant. ,

Td C-ounty'Community Action Head Start serves 217 children in Carmoll,
Coos & Grafton countles In 9 locations with 13 center-based classmooms

and 1 home-basad option.

Ggaglanshlg
The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardlan

-services for the wvulnerable population of New Hampshire reskients
{developmantally disabled, chronically mentally i, traumatic braln Injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzhsimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve In that capacity. This program serves 414
indlviduals. ! Addltional services include, conservatorship, represenmative
payee-shlp, federal fiduclary services, benefit management services and
prvate pmbate accounting services.

Trans a’ n

The Organization's transit program provides varous transporiation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door sarvice by request, long distance
medical travel to médical facilttles outside our regular service area, and
special rips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located ouiside the regular service area. The Organtzation’s fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transporiation options to the elderly
and disabled, aa well as to the genera! public.

Volunteer |
The Coos: County Ratired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains

a minimum’ group of 394 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 287
actively served during the last reporting pericd. These volunteers share
thetr skills, lIfe experlences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agenmes throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of thelr constituents. Our volunteers donate

vver 46, 764!hours yearly.,

I

Workforce Davelopment
The Organization is asslsling transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for |newr jebs, and also asslsting currenﬂy-employed workers to
gain the sk!lls required for better jobs.

"
1
]
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The Organization is helping to Implement New Hampshire's Unlified State
Plan for Workforce Development, [n line with the federal Workforce
Investment Acl. Workforce tralning programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy familles (TANF)
- recipiants with 20-30 hours per week of traintng in the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experence, end also place
participating TANF recipients In community-based work exparience siles.

Alcohol & Other Drugs (AOD)"
Services provided through the AQD program included assisting the

sicoholic/addicted person on the road to recovery, through three phases:
Crisls Intervention, Sobriety Malntenence, and Agssessment and Referrel to

appropriate treatment facliities.

The Residential Treatment Programs (Friendship House) provided
chemically dependent Individuals with the fundsmental tools of recovery,
including educatlonat classes, group and individual counseling, work and
rocreational therapy, and attendance at in-house snd community-bassd
glcoholics anonymous and narcotice anonymous meetings. The AOD
program also offered assistance with its impaired driver programs.

Effactive October 1, 2017, the Organizston is no longer responsible for the
Alcoho! & Other Drugs (AOD) program. The grants for the program were
transferred to North Country Health Consortium (NCHC), as they took over the
“progrem. The Friendship House was sold to Affordable Housing Education and
Development (AHEAD).

Camulf Coupty Dental

- The Tamwerth Dental Centar {the Center) oftars high quality oral health
care to childran with NH Medicaid coverage. The Oranization alsc serves
uninsured and underinsured children and adults using s sliding fee scale
_that offers Income-based discounts for care. The Certer.accepts most
common dental surances for those who have commercial denta!
insurance coveregs. A schookbased project of the Denta! Center, School
Smiles, offars oral health education, screening, treatment and referrals for
treatment to over 1,000 children In.9 schootls in the vicinity of the Center.

Suppoit Center )

The Organlzation's Supporl Center at Burch Houss provides direct service
and shefter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual viclence and
stalklng in Northem Grafton County. Support Certer services are
accesshhie 24 hours a day, 365 days a yesr. They Include: crisls
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency sheller; supporl groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevertion programs for students;
Information, referrals and assistence accessing other communlty
resources. :

10




Homel

Homsless samces include an oulreach Intervenﬂon and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and famifles from becoming homeless,
and asslsts the already homaless In securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organlzalion provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients,

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

Energy Asélstanco and Ougmaca

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and eléctric assistance through
direct pay to vandors or a discount on tha cllent's bill. Community Contact
sitas allow local paricipants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information {o the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs avallable through other organizations In the community.

Low-in I on

The NH weatherization program helps Iow-incorne familtes, elderty,
dinabled, small children end Individuals lower their home energy costs;
Increase their health, safety, and comfort; and Improve the quaiity of living
while lmprovlng housing stock in communites around the state utilizing
energy cost! saving, health and sefety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatheﬂzallon Assistance Program also creales local NH jobs.

<\
Eldar |
The Organization's elder program provides sanjor meals in 15 community
dining sittes, home delivared meals {Meals on Wheals) to the frail and
homebound: elderdy, and senlor nutrition education and related
programrnlng The Coos County Servicelink Aging & Disabllity Resource
Center asslsls with person-centered counseling, Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-tarm care counseling services, and caregiver

supponts. |

MH_S.QM“;
Comerstone, Housing North, inc. is subject to a Project Rental Assislance

Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of Housing and Urban

Devalopmenl (HUD), and a significent portion of thelr rental income is
received frnm HUD.

The Organlzatlon Indudes a 12-unit apartment complex In Berin, New
Hampshlre for the elderdy. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and Is regulated by HUD with respact to the remtal charges
and Dperatlng methods.

1
1
1
1
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The Organization has a Section 202 Capltal Advance. Under guidelines
astablished by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Unlform
.Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulstions (CFR} part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program, :

Method of accounting '

The consolldated financial statements of Tr-County Communlty Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basls of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted In the UnHed States of America, as
promulgated by the Financlal Accounting Slandards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codlfication (ASC). Under this basls, revenus, othar than contrbutions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of recaipt or

payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The financla! statemsnts of the Organization have besn prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to report information regarding Its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classlfications:

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not subject
to eny donor-impased restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in

" performing the primary objectives of the Organization. Thess net assets may
be used st the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
diractors. :

or restrictlons Include net assets subject to stipulations
Imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are tamporary in
nature; thosa restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passsage of time, Other donor restrictions are perpatual! in nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organtzation has net asssts with donor restrictions of $678,254 and $817,761
at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respactivaly. See Note 13

Contributions , .
Contributions recelved are recorded as net assets withoul donor restrictions or net

assels with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-impoged restrictions. Support that is restricled Is reported as an increase in
net assels without donor restrictions if tha restriction explres in the reporting period
In which the contribution is recognized. Ali other donor restricted contributions are
reported a5 net assels with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulaled time restriction
. ends or purpose restriction is accomplishad), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported In the statemant of
activities as net acsele released from restrictions. '
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Accounts Recaivable
Accounts recaivable ara stated at the emount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding &t year-end. Most of the receivables are amounis due from
foderal and state awarding ageéncies and are based on relmbursemsm for
. expenditures made under speclfic grents or contracts. A portion of tha accounts

receivable batance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program. Past due receivables ara written off at management's discretion using the
direct write off method; this Is not considered a departure from acoounting principles
generally accepted in the Uniled State because the effects of the direct write
method approximate those of the allowance msthod. Management selects accounts

to be written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable, and collection rates for recalvables with similar characteristics, such as

length of time outstanding. The Organization does not charge Interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation :

Acquistions of bulldings, equipment, and Improvements in excaes of $5,000 and all
axpendttures for repalrs, maintenance, and betterments that materially profong the
useful lves of assets are capitallzed. Buildings, equipment, and Improvements are
stated at cosl less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation [s provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives.of the related asseots.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by en individua! progrem ls
charged directly 10 the related program. Depreclation expense for assets used by
more then one program Is changed to the program based upon a square footage or
other strmilar allocation. ’ '

Deproctation expénse related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs In accordance with the Indirect cost plan.
Malntenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assels ere
charged to expense as Incurred.

Estimated useful iives are as foliows:

Bulldings and Improvement 20 to 40 years

Vehicles | o _ 5to 8.5 years

Furniture and equipment 510 15 years
. Cllent Rants agg' HUD Rent Subsidy

Comersione Housing North, inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basls by the
Department of H9using and Urban Development. Rental Increasas are prohibited
without such approval. The cllents are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustmentsfallowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Departmem of Housing and Urban
_ Development for; the difference between the aliowed rents and the amounts
recelved from the'clients.
. o

Ll !
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Refundable Adyances
Grants recefved In advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized

as revenue In the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performad or Incurred. Funds received In advance of grantor conditions being mat
aggregated $187,157 and $191,069 as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. .

Nonpro statug :
The Organization is a not-for-profil Section 501(c)3) ompanization In accoriance
with the Intemal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that Is not
a private foundation undsr the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution dsgduction for Individual donors. The Organization files Information
retums In the United States. The Orgenization's Federal Form 880 (Retum of

Organization Exemp! from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS,

generally for three years after it is filed. The Organizalion is no longer subject to -

examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2015.

The Organization follows FASB ASC, Accounting for Uncerteinty in Income Taxes,
which clarifies the asccounting for uncertainty In income taxes and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement atirfbute for financial statement recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to-be taken in a tax retum.
The Orgenization does not believe they have taken uncertaln tax’ positions,
thérefore, a ilabliity for Income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not

. been recognized. .

Due to changes in tha tax law In the 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Acl, the Organtzation
Is subject to file an Unrelated Business Income Tax Retum for unafiowed expanses
for the year ended June 30, 2018. These expenses fall under tha qualified taxable
fringe benefits. The total tax due for the yaar ended June 30, 2018 is approximately
$8,900.

Comerstone Housing North, inc. Is exempt from [ncoms laxes under Section
501(c){3) of the Intema! Revenue Code. The Intema! Revenue Service has
determined the Orgenization to be other than & private foundation within the

meaning of Section 508(a).

Retirement plap ) .
The Organization maintalns a tax-sheltered annuity ptan under the provisions of

Saction 403(b) of the Intemal Revenus Code. All employees are eliglble to -

contribute 1o the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement conirbutions In acoordance with fimils
allowad In the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion, .In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, tharefors as of Juna 30, 2018 and 2018, there were no discretionary
contributions -recorded. Further Information can be oblelned from the
Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements.
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Dona ervices

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or
that require specialized skills and would typlcally need to be purchased if nol
provided by donation are recorded al thelr falr values in the period recelved.

Contributad noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. if
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded

as net assets with donor restriclions. In the absence of such stipulations, .

contributions of| noncash .assets am recorded as net assets without donor
resiﬂqtlons . .

Donaled pfoggnv and equipment

Donations of proparty and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated falr
value at the date of donatlon. Such donations are reported as net assats without
donor restrictions unless the- donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrctions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire proparty and equipment are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long lhose1 donated assels must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed In
service as instructed by the donar. The Qrganization reclassifies nel assets with
donor restrictions to net assats without donor rasirctions at that time.

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially mel. Unconditiongl promiges to give that are expected
to be collected: within one year are recorded st the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present vaiue of thelr
future cash ﬂows The discounts on those amounts are computed using rsk-
adjusted intarest ' rates applicable to the years In which the promises are receltved.
Amortizatlon of, lhe discounts s Included in contributlon revanue. In the ebsence of
donor stipulaﬂons to the contrary, promises with payments due |n future pariods are
restricted to use iaﬂar the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than
one year afler thelr due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
rastrictions are reclasslﬁad to net assets without donor restrictions.

|
As of June 30, 2018 and 2018, there were promises to glve that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classifted as nel
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $231,161 and $212,207,
respectively. This amount was Included In grants and contracts on the
Consolidated Statement of Activities.
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Use of estimates
The presentation of financlal slatements In conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of Americe requires manegemant to make
estimates and assumptions that éffect the reported amounts of asssis and llabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets end liablities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting -

period. Accordingly, actual rasults coutd differ from thoss estimates.

Falr Yelue of Financlal Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 826), Disclosures of Falr Valug of
Financlal Instrumenis, requires the Organization to disclosa falr values of Iis
financlal Instruments. Ths camrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts recelvable, deposite and accounts
payable, approximate falr value because of the short-term malurity of those

instruments.

netl llocation of naes
The costs of providing the various programs and other aclivities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activitles. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporﬂng activilies
benefited.

Program salarfes and_related expenses are allocsled to the various
progrems and supporting services based on actual or estimated time
smployses spend on each function as reported on 8 imeshest.

Workers Cor_ngggsaﬂog oxpenses gre charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employae and allocsted to the varlous program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Pald Leavg is charged to a leave pool and Is allocated to each program as o
percentage of totel salarles.

Fringe Bonefits are charged to a Frings Benefit Pool. These expensss
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and: dentel
Insurance and unemployment. compensation. The pool Is aliocated lo each
program based upon & percentage of salaries. .

Depreciation expense Is allocsled to each program besed upon specif ic

assets usad by the program and is reported as depreciation expsnse on the
stalements of funclional expensaes.

Other occggancz expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Bulldings are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a bullding Include
depreciation, insurance, utllities, building maintenance, stc. These costs are
reporled as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.

16
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Ingurance: aulomoblle Insurance |s allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; buddnng liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and insurance for fumiture and equipment is aliocated
to programs using the book basls of the insured assets.

MMW are charged to an indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.

- The expensses Include items such as adminlstrative sslarles, general liability
fnsurance, a:dm{nislrative travel, professional fees and othsr expenses which
cannct be speciﬁcalry identified and charged to a-program.

The Organizstion submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the pald leave, fringe
benefits and other Indirect cosis lo the U.S. Depariment of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018, received
- provistonat approval and is effactive, untll amended, at a rate of 12.50%. Per the

agreement with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the

Organization's final rate for the year ended Juns 30, 2018 was 11.45%. The actual
rate for the year ended June 30, 2018 was approximaisly 10.44%, which Is
allowable because it is less than the provisional rate.

I
Advertising policy
The Omganization uses advertising to Inform the community about the programs it
offers and the avallabiiity of services. Advertising is axpensed as Incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $11,868 and
$16,618, respectively.

Debt Issuance Cost
During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Omganlzation ratrospecllvely adopled the

provislons of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
*Simplifying the Presentation of Debt issusnce Costs." The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentsiion of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
.measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not aflected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887.has been included with Intarest expsnse [n the
consolidated s‘lalaments of functional expenses for both 2019 and 2018.
1

N ccounting Pronounc
On August 18, 2016, FASB isued ASU 2018-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Toplc 858)
- Presantation of Financia! Statements of Not-for-Profit Enfities. The update
addresses tlhe complaxﬂy and understandablily of net asseat classlﬂthon
deficiencies in information about liquidity and availabllity of resources, end the lack
of conslstancy in the type of Information provided about expenses and investment
retum. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these statements
accordingly. The ASU has bean applied retrospectively to all penods presened,

: |

C
|
|
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NOTE 2. { D AVAILABI '

NOTE 3.

The following represents the Orgenlzation's financial assets as of June 30, 2015

. and 2018: 7
2019 2018
Financiel assets at year-end: o
Cash and cash équivalents, undeskgnaled $ 1.400,750 $ 1,329,038
. Accourts recaiveble . 1,274,083 1,156,857
Pledges receivabla : 231,161 212,207
Total financial sssets 2 905,094 2,697,802
LLess amounts not avallgble to be
used within one year.
‘Nel assets with donor restrictions 678,254 817,701
Less ne! assets with time restrictions to be
met in less than a year {348,631} (540,643}
Amounts not avaflable within one yesr 320,623 277,148

Financlal assets available o mest general

expendftures over the next twelve months  § g,sz_ﬁ.ﬁ ] 5. z 42 I.I-Z&‘j

it Is the Orgsnization's goal to mamtain financial assets to meet- 60 days of
operating expensas which approximates $2,786,000 and $2,720.000 respactively,
at June 30, 2019 and 2018. _

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and Investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end ‘and throughout the year, the Organlzation's cash balances were
deposited with multiple finenclal institutions. At June 30, 2019 and_2018,.the
balances In interest and non-interest-bearing accounts were insured by the FDIC up
to $250,000. At June 30,.2018 and 2018, there was approximately §1,750,000 and
$1,200,000, of deposits heid in excess of the FDIC Iimit, respectively. Management
pelleves the Organization Is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and
cash equivalents and considers this a normal business risk.

Cpsh Restrictions ) .
The Organization is required to mainiain a deposit account with a bank as part of

the toan security agresment disclosed at Note 7. [t is required to maintain a

batance of $19,068 in the account, which lg restricted from withdrawal except to-

make payments of debl service or as approved by the US Department of
Agriculture.
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NOTE 4.

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of dett service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the meximum required depostt baiance Is achieved. The
batance as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $20,010 and $18,880, respectively.
Ths Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2010 and 2018. These amounts are included in restricted cash on the
‘Statements of Financiat Posktion. :

The Qrganlzation is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond Issue {see bond payabis in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and Is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30, 2019 and 2018 was $176,208 and $176,570, respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included In restricted
cash on the Statements of Financial Position. .

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who particlpate In
the Guardlanship Services Program. The balance In the account is rastricted for
use on behalf of thess clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as' other current liablitles. The total cument liabllity related to this
restriction at Jun:e 30, 2018 and 2018 was $682,118 and $378,605, respectively.
These amounts ‘are induded in other lisbilites on the Statements of Financlal
Position. The total restricied cash within this account at June 30, 2019 and 2018
was $582,118 'and $378.605, respactively, and Is included In the restricted cash
batance on the Statements of Financial Pasttion. :

At June 30, 2018, the Organization had $45,108 In restrictad cash releting to the
property that Is held for sale at year end. Upon the sale of the property, it will ba
donatad to enother non-profit Organization.

Certain cash accounts refated to Comarstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certaln uses in the Orpanization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of ‘Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2018 and 2018 was $179.277 and $131,610, respectively. See Note 15.
o .

o [
INVENTORY |
In 2019 and 2018, invenlory Included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
invantory Is taken annually. Cost is delermined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory af June 30, 2019 and 2018, consists of weatherization materials

" totaling $85,886 and $87,568, respeciively.
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NOTE S,

NOTE 6.

During the year endad June 30, 2018, the Organization adopted the provisions of
tha FASB Accounting Standard Update (ASU)} 2015-11, Inventory, (Tople 330):
Simpfifying the Meesurement of Invenfory, which esimplifies the subsequent
measurement of inventory by requirng inventory to be measured at the iower of
cost or net realizable valve. Net realizable value Is the estimated selling price of
inventory in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably pradictable costs of
compietion, disposal and transportetion. The OQrganization has evaluated ASU
2015-11 and has determined that there Is no material Impact to the financial
slatements. '

ACCRUED EARNED TIME _
For the years ending June 30, 2019 and 2018, employees of the Organization were

afigible to accrue vacstion for 8 maximum of 180 hours. Al June 30, 2019 and -

2018, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that ks
employees had eamed and vested In the. amount of $204,079 and $203,121,

respectively. )
PROPERTY R )
Property consists of the following at June 30, 2019:
Caphalized Accumulated Nat
Cost Depreclation Boogk Value
Bullding $ 0,700,740  $ 3,469,618 § 6,240,131
Equipment . 1,950,063 1,708,917 241,148
Construction .
in progress 2.500 ‘e 2,500
Land 423,840 : 423840
Property consists of the following at June 30, 2018:
Capllallmd Accumulated Net

Cost Deprociation PBook Value

Building $10,003,844 $ 3,448,411 §$8,5565533
Equipment 2,384,805 1,764,913 620,692
Land 423,840 ' 423,840

$12002060 £EI3S 1600006

., ~ The Omganizalion has use of computers and equfpmeni'whlch are the bropeny of

stete and federal agencies under grant agreemants. The equipment, whose book
value ks immaterial to the financial stalements, Is not included in the Drganizm}ons

property and equipment tolals.
20




NOTE 7.

Depredstion expense for the yesrs ended June 30, 2018 and 2018 totaied
$447,660 and $463,483, respactively.

The Organization has property held for sale at June 30, 2019 amounting to
$47,000, which Is classified as a current assel In the accompanying consolidated
statemants of financial position. The tota! foss on the write down to market value of
this property was $255,492.

0 EBT
The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2019 end 2018 conslsted of

the following:

Note payable with the USDA requiring 350 monthty
instaliments of.$1,664, Including Interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
instafliment due January 2027, $ 124887 $ 138,225

Note payabie wﬂh a bank requirdng 120 monthly
installments of $3,033, .including Interest at 4.68%
per annum. Secured by first morlgeges on two
commercial properties. Final installmenl due April
2021, .o 328,886 348,131

Ncte paysble wr'l‘lh 8 bank requiring 60 maonthly

Ingtaliments of $458, including Intarest at 5% per

annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit

that was converted to a term loan during the year

ended June 30, 2016 Final Instaliment due April

2021. i 9,618 14,500
Note payable to.a financing company requiring 72

monthly ‘Instaliments of $312, including interest at -

5.48% per annum. Secured by the Organization's -

vehicle. Final lm;ta!lmsnt due August 2021, 7,642 10,874

Note payabla to a flnancing company requining 72
monthly Installments of $313, Including Interest at
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organizalion's
vehicle. Final Insll.allment due July 2021. 7.385 10,637

|
Note payable to's financing company requiring 80
monthly Insiallmeénts of $143, including interest at
5.80% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle, Final Inslallment dus November 2020. 2,33 3,883

i

i .
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Note payable lo & financing company requiring 72
monthly instaliments of $248, Including intgrast at

6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organization's -

vehicle. Final installment due February 2023.

Note -payable with a bank requiring 80 monthly
installments of $2,612, including Interest at 5.51%
per annum. Secured by second morigage on
commercial progerty. Finat balicon paymen is due In
March 2023.

Bond payable with a bank requiing monthly
instaliments of $14.485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's intemal cost of funds multiplied by

- 87% with an indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by .

first commercial real estate morigage on varous
propertles and aessignments of rents al various
properties. Final installmant due August 2040,

Comerstone Housing North, Inc. cepfial advance
due to the Department of Housing and Urben
Development. This capital advance is not subject to

8,739 12,044

366,429 403,244

2,834,585 2,719,280

interes! or principal amortization and will bs forgiven -

after 40 years, or In August 2047.

Comerstone Housing North, inc. morigage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The martgage is not subject to Interest or principal
amorttzation. Payments are defeed for 40 years,
final payment due in August 2047,

Tota! long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs
 Unamonired dsferred financing cosls

Yotal long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

22

1,817,600 1,617,600

280000 __ 250,000

5,388,102 5,528,375
11818 {12,703

5,378,284 6,616,670
{148.,449) (142,733)

:'s- § 235835 W
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NOTE 8.

The scheduled maturities of long-term debl as of June 30, 2019 were as follows:

Years ending .

June 30 " Amount
2020 $ 148,449
2021 437624
2022 ‘ 123,156
2023 485,481

;2024 , 118,295

Thereafter 4,076,087 .

As described at Nota 3, the Organization Is required to malntain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed abova.

CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Organizetion leased a phone system and

copler under the: terms of caplial leases, expling in November 2020 and March
2021, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company leased an
additional copler:under the termns of a capital lesse, expiring In May 2021. The
assets and labllities under the capial leases are recorded at the lower of the

presem value of the minimum lease peyments or the fair value of the assets. The.

assels ama depreciated over their estimated lives.

The obligations included In capital leases at June 30, 2016 and 2018, consisted of
the following:

1 .-
R 2018 2008
Lease payable. to a financing company with S
monthly installments of $208 for principal and
interest at 8.6% per annum. The lease is secured
by the phons aystem and will mature in November
2020. i $ 3291 § 5362
Lease payabla|to a financing company with
monthly Instaliments of $122 for princlpal and
Interest at 8.841% per annum. The leass Is
securad by a copler and will mature in March

2021. 2,261 3,467
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Lease payable to "a financing company with
monthly Instaliments of $122 for principal and
interast at 8.918% per annum. The lease Is

secursd by a copler end will mature In May 2021. 2673 3,842
_ 8,225 12,671
Less current portion (4,870} {4,445)

The scheduled maturities of capital lease obligations as of June 30, 2019 were as

follows:
Ye‘ara ending
June 30 Amount
2020 : ' $ 4870
2021 ’ 33585

NOTE 8. EMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Omganization has aveilable a 5750 000 line of credit with its primary financia! \
institution which is sacured by ral astate mortgages and assignments of leases '
and rents on various properties as disclosed In the line of credit agreement -
Bommowings under the line bear Interest at 5.00% per annum, and totaled $316,000 -
at June 30, 2018. There was no belance outstanding at June 30, 2018. The ling is
subject to renawal each January.

The Organization was issued an unsecured revolving fine of cred! in 2014 with the
New Hampshire Department of Administration Services. The Organization was not
raquired 10 make payments of Interest or principal prior to maturity. At June 30,
2018, the outstending debl totaled $200,022, which Included accrued Intarest of

. $21,434. The unsecured revolving line of credit was pald off In full during the year
ended June 30, 2018.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES
The Omanization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space.
Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have varous starting dates,
lengths, and tarms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the Organization has
several facilitiea which are leased on 8 month to month basls. For the years ended
_June 30, 2019 and 2018, the annual rent expense for leaaed facilities totated
$181,127 and $165,227, raspaclively.
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Future mln!murni lease payments under, non-cancelable operating leases having
inltial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2018, are as follows:

Years ending
" June 30 Amount
© 2020 $ 147,718
2021 65,003
2022 . 3,301

i

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS
The Organization records the value of in-kind conlributions eccording to the
accounting policy described in Note . The Heed Stan, transportation and elder
programs rely heavily on voluntears who donate thelr services to the Orgeanization.
Thess services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
pald positions., |

The Organlzaﬂon’ is also tha beneficiary of a donation of in kind In the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and elder programs.
The value of the inkind rent is recorded &t the difference between the rental
payment and the lrmarket rate for tha property based upon a recent appralsal.

Many other individuals have donated significant amounts of time to the activities of
the Organlzallon‘ The financlal statements do not reflect any value for these
donated setvices since there 15 no relfiable basie for making e reasonable
detemmination. |

1

NOTE 12. _wggumn_ugf_&_s
Tr-County Communﬂy Action Program, {nc. receives a majority of ﬂs support from

federal and state.govemments. For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2018,
approximately $13,651,828 (77%) and $13,773,803 (75%). respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was recelved from federal and siste governments. If a
significant reductlon in the level of support were to occur, it would have a signtficant
effact on the Otganizatron s programs and activities.

Comarstone Houslng North, Inc. receives & large majoritty of its support from the

U.S. Depariment oI’ Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended Juna

30, 2010 and 2018 approximatsly 68% of the Organtzations total revenus was

derived from the :U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. [n the

absence of addnllonal revenue sources, the future existence of Cornerstone

Houging North, Inc. Is dependsnt upon the funding policles of the U.S. Departmant
" of Housing and Urban Development.
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The majority ot’ Comerstane Housing North, Inc.'s assels are apariment projects,
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real eslate market In
addition, the Organization oparates In a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencles, including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such administrative directtves, rules and repulations are subject to change by an
. act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur with littte notico or inadequste funding to pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change. '

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets with danar restrictions are avallable for the folloMng specaﬂc program

gervices as of June 30, 2019 and 2018
2019 . 2018

Temporary Municipat Funding $ 231,161 $ 212,207
10 Bricks Shelter Funds o 142,190 142,190
FAP , , - 117,470 . 136,614
. Restricted Buildings 87,541 180,049
Support Center 25,939 o .
Weathenzation 25,000 .
Loans - HSGP . 19,807 21,454
FAPIEAP : 11,290 - 23,249
RSVP Program Funds 7.056 5021
Senior Meals . 5,130 .
Head Start : 3,899 4,172
Donations to Maple Fund 1,571 1.586
Homelsss Programs ' : . 27,680
USDA ' 10,332
Loans - HHARLF ' T 6,987
IDN Capacity Fund . ' - 32,194
Community Needs Assasement . 4.076
“Total net assets with donor restrictions £.015.25% £ B2

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONT]NGENCIES

Grant Compliance
The Organlzation receives funds under several foderal and state granis. Under the

terms of the grants the Organization Is required to comply with various slipulations
Including use and tlme restrictions. if the Organization was found o be
noncompliiant with the provisions of the grani agreemenis, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.




NOTE 15.

Environmental Contingencles

On March 30, 2009, the Qrganization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownsership of &, 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Bulldings which
ware formerly used as g research and development facllity for the Bedin Mdls

Company. ' .

The exterior s0ll and Interior parts ot the East wing Building contalned
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In 8 letter dated May 2,
2012, the State| of New Hampshire Department of Envionment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedisl aclions for the exteror soils and paris of the
East Wing Building had been compieted to the Depariment’s satisfaction.

In addition, the Departmant noted that the contaminants relaled to the West Wing
Building did not pose en exposure hazerd to sita occupants, area residents, and the
environmeni, provided the Wast Wing Bullding is maintained to prevert further
structural deterioration. 1f further dsterioration occurs and contaminants are
released Into the environment, the Organlzation could be required to take additional
actlon including contalnment and remediation.

Loss Contlngénjcleg '
During the year ‘'ended June 30, 2018, legal actions were brought against the

Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as of June 30,
20190, ss wall as the unceriainty of tha Omanization's potential liability, no amount
has bean sccrued by the Organization at this time.

REPLACE ‘RSERVE AND RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS
Under Comarstone Housing North lnc s negulatory agreement with HUD, the
Organization |5 required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
replacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits of $120,407 and $106,548 wers held In a segregated account al
June 30, 2019 and 2018, respeciively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not
available for operéting pUrpoOses.

Cornarstone Hous[ng North, Inc.'s use of the residual receipts account is contingent
upon HUD's pnor 'written epproval. Resldual receipts of $48,514 and $21,326 were
held in a segragated account for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,

respactively.

HUD has initiated policles to recapture funds bullt up in residual recelpts accounts
upon renewal of the Omanization's project ramal asslstance contract. The policias
direct that the amounts in excess of certaln limits in the resldual recelpts account be

~ (a)usedto offset rem subslidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or {b) remitted

directly to HUD. The policles generally require pmject owners ta limit the monles
accumulated In Ihe residual recelpls account to $250 per unit.

27




NOTE 16.

’

In accordance with the policy noted above, subsequent lo year end the
Organization was required to remit funds to HUD totaling $31,412. In addition to the
funds remitted, HUD approved the Organizalion to withdraw $11,852 from the
residual recaipts account for equipment.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent events are events or transactlons that occur afler the statement of

financlal posltion date, but before financia! statements are avallable {o be lssued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transsctions that provide additional
evidance about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimatas inherent In the process of prepering financial statements,
Nonrecognized subssquent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsaquent events through October 21,
2019, the date the financial statements were evailable to be Issued.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORYT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON -
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
L CORDANC GOVERNMENT AUDITING S DARDS

To tha Board of Directors of
Tri-County Communlty Action Progrem, Inc.
Bearfin, New Hampehlre

Wa have audited, in ececordance with the auditing standards ganerelly acceptad in the United Stetes of
America and the standards applicabla to financial sudiis contained In Governmeni Auditing Standards
tssusd by the Comptroler General of the Unlted Statss, the financial statsments of Tri-County
Community Aclion Program, inc. (e nonprofll organlzation), which comprise the statement of fingnclal
position as of June 30, 2019, &nd the relelad slatemenis of aclivities, funclionsl expenses and cash
flows for the yesr then ended, and the related notea to the fnancia! statements, and have lssued aur
report tharaon dated October 21, 2019.

Internal Controf Ovar Financla! Repoiting

in planning &nd performing our gudit of tha consalidated finencial statements, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Progrem Inc.'s intemel control over financlal repering (intemal control) to determine
the audit procedurss thal are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the consolikaled finanda! statemsnts, bul nol for the purpose of expressing en opinlon on
- the effectiveneas of Tri-Counly Community Action Program Inc.'s intema! control. Accordingly, we do
nol express an opinlon on the eflectivenasa of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s internal

cantral,

A deficiency In interngl cantrol exists whan the design or operalion of a control does not alow
managemen or employess, In the narmal course of performing Ihelr assigned functions, to prevent, or
delect and coroct, misstatements on s timely bacls. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 8 .
combination of deficiencies, In Intermal control, such that there s a reasonahte possiblity that a material
misstatament of lhe entily’s financia! statements will not be prevented, of detected Bnd corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency ts a deficiency, or a combination of deficlencles, In infernal control
that is less covers than 8 matorial weakness, yet important enough o merit attentlon by those chamed

with governance.

Our consideration of intemnal controt was for tha limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
saction and was not designed to identify all deficiendes in intemal control that might be material
weaknessss or significant deficlencies. Given thesa limitations, duting our audil we did not idenfify eny
deficlandes in inlernal control thal we consider {0 be material waaknessas Howaver, mater(a)
weaknesses may exist that have not been ldenfified.




'

Compliance and Othor Malterg '

As part of obtaining reasonable sssurence about whether Tr-County Community Aclion Program Inc.'s
financlal statements ere free from material misstatement, we performed testa of its compltance with
cartain provisions of laws, regutations, contracts, end grant egresments, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and materis! effect on the determination of consolidated financial statemeni
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provislons was not en objactive of
our audit, and eccondingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resulls of ‘our tests disclosed no

L

instances of noncompliance: or other malters that are required fo be reported under Government
Auditing Standards. "

Purpose of this Report !

The purpose of this reporl Is solaly to describe the scope of our teeling of Intemal control and
compfliance and the resulta of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the efiectivenass of the
organization's Internal cantrol.or on compiiance. This repor! is an Integra! part of an audit performed In
accordance with Government Auditing Standards In considering the orgenizgtion's Intemal condrol and
compilance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purposs.

Dot ishiom

i : -
Octaber 21, 2018
North Conway, New Hampshire

s
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IRLCQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGBAM, ING,
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPUANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDARCE

’

To the Board ot Direttors of
Tri-County Communlty Action Program, In¢.
Bertlin, New Hampshire

Report on Comptiance for Each Major Federal Progrom

Woe have audited Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described In the OMB Compliance Suppiement that could have 8 direct ‘and material
effect on sach of Tri-County Community Acion Program Inc.'s majar (ederal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2018. Tri-County Communlly Action Program Inc.'s major faderal programs are
tdentifisd in the summary of audilors’ resulls seclion of the accompanylng schedule of findings and

questioned costs. .

Mznagement's Responsibility
Managemenl is responsible for compilance with the raquh'ements of laws, regulalions, contracts and

pranis applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Rosponsiblifty

Our responsibliitty s to express en oplnion on compliance for each of Tri-County Community Aclion
Program inc.'s major fedsrsl programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conductad our sudit of compllance -in accordance with euditing standards
generafly eccepted In the United Steles of America; the siendards applicable to financia! audits
oontalned in Govarninent Awditing Standards, lssued by the Comptroller Genera! of the Unlled States;
and the audll requiremants of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Rogulations Part 200, Unfform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and AudX Requiremants for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and Unlform Guidance require thal we plan and perform the audit to
obinin reasanabls essurance about whethar noncompllance with the typas of compiiance requirements
raforred lo abeve 1thet could have a direct and materal effect on a major federal progrem occurred. An
audit Includes examining, on a tas! basis, ovidence pbout Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
compllance wih those requirements and performing such other proceduras as we consldered
nacessary in the circumatances.

We believe thst our audil provides a reasoneble basts for our opinfon on compllance for asch major
feders! program, Mowever, our audil does nol provide a legal determmination of Td—County Communlty
Aclion Program Inc.'s compliance.




Opinlon on Each Major Federal Program .

in our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. complied, In all material respacts, with tha
types of compiiance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and matertal effect on each
of its major foderal programs for the year ended June 30, 2049.

Report on Internal Control aver Compliance .

Mansgement of Tri-County 'Community Action Program, inc. Is responsible for establishing and
malniaining effective infernal control over compliance with the lypes of compliance requiremants
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compllance, wa considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s intemal controf over compllance with the types of requirements that

couki have e direct and maleral effect on aach major federal program to dsterming the audHing

procodures thal are appropriate In the circumsiances for the purpose of expressing an opinlon on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on intemal control over compllance In
sccordance with UnMorm™ Guldance, but no! for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal oontr;ol over compliance. Accordingly, we do not exprass an oplnion on the
eflactiveness of Tr-County Community Action Program, Inc.’s internal contro! over complianca.

A defilency in Intarnal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of & control over
compliance does nol allow management or employpes, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functicns, to prevent. or detect and corect, noncompliance with & type of compliance
“requiremant of a feders! program on a timely basis. A malerial weakness in Internal control over
compilance Is a deficiency, or combination of defidencies, In Internal contro! over compllance, such that
there is & reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with e type of compliance requirement of &
federal program will not be prevented, or detactad and correcled, on a timely besis. A significent
deficlency in internal control over compliance is a deficlency, or o combination of deficlencles, in
intemal control over compliance with a typa of compliance requirement of a fageral program tha! ls lass
severe than & material weaknass In Intamal control over compllance, ye! important enough to merit

 aitention by those chargad with govemance.

Our consideration of intamal ‘control over compliance was for the fimited purpose described in the first
psragraph of -this cection and was nol designed to identify all deflclancies In interna! control ovar
compliance that might be material weaknesess or significant deficlencles. We did not [déntify any
deficiencies In Inlemal control over compilance that we consider o be material weaknesses. However,

matere! weaknasses may eﬂstlthat have not bean ldentified.

The purpose of this report on hemal control over compllance Is solaly 1o describe the scope of our
tesling of internal control over compliance and the resuls of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is nol suitable for any other purpose.

B opsios. @ o

October 21, 2019 ,
North Conway, New Hampshire ,
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

1 The audilors’ report expreases an unmodified oplnion on the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc, . -

2. No significant deficiencies relating {o the eudil of the financial statements ere reporied in the

Indspendent Auditars’ Repart on Intemeal Control over Financlal Reporting and on Compllance
and other Metters Based on an Audl of Financial Statements Perforrned in Accordsnce with

Governmant Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompllance material to the finandal ststements of Tr-County Community
Actlon Program, inc. which would be required lo be reported in accordanca with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit, _

4. No significant deficdenclas in intemal control over major federal award programs during the audit

. 8re reported In the Independant Auditors’ Repart on Compliance for Each Major Progrem end
on Internal Control over Compliance in Accardance with the Unlform Guldances.

9. The auditors’ report on compllance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs,

6. No audil findings thal are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported in this Schedule. .

7. The programs tested as major programs included:
U.S. Depl. of Haalth & Human Services, LIKEAP — CFDA #93.568
U.S. Depl. of Heaith & Human Services, Head Start — CFDA #93.600

U.S. Depl. of Energy, Weatherization Assistance for Low Incoms Individuals - CFDA
#81.042 :

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.
8 Tri-County Community Action Progrem, Inc. was delemined 10 be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None _
FINDINGS AND QUESTICNED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERJ_\L AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

Nane
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TrA-County Communlity Action Program, Inc.

Key Personpel
BWP Contract
FY2021
Name Job Title Salary % Salary Amount Paid from
Paid from this Contract
this Contract .
[eanne Robillard Chief Executive Qfficer $120,000 0% 0
Randall Pilotte Chief Financial Officer $80,080 0% 0
Kristy Letendre Chief Program Officer $70,000 0% ]
Gerald Millllkdn Department Head $55,000 0% 0
Nathan Mills Weatherization Director $50,000.08 20% $10,000.02
Dennis Downs Production Supervisor $44,720 15% $6,708
Jessica Young Program Supervisor $33,280 30% $9,984.00
Samantha Roy Home Heating Repair and 333,280 100% $33,280
Replacement Coordinator




Jeanne L. Robillard

1
; E EN
Program devclopmcnt.'r:nmagamcnt and administration  * Community eollaborations
Development of palicy, protacal, and service delivery to meet funder standards
Grant writng and management ¢ Budget performance and financial reporting
Innovative solutinns & pmblcm solving ¢ Capacity building
Professional prescntations ¢ Public spesking
Dedication ¢ lmagination ¢ Determination ¢ Fortitude

\ v
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Tri-Coanty Gmnmunity; ‘Action Programs, Ine.

Chiel Executive Officer

Berlin, NH 2018 - chrre_nt FT employment

Tri-County Communify Aetion Progrum Ine.

Chief Operating Officer |

Derlin, NH 2016 - 2018

Responsible for the opcrauons of six agency Divisions with 15 individud) programs that prowdc over
60 consumer services across three coundes of Northern New Hampshire. Essential duties include;
supcrvision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues, cxpcndnurcs
and budget performance; tactical Ovcmght of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; devclop and implement strategics to improve individual programs and overall agency program
and fiscal performance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Stratcgic Plan,
Commumty Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
service initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily operations of progmms

TrisCounty Comn:unlly @dlon Programs, Ine.

Divixion Direcior: TCCAP Prevention Services

Berlin, NH 2013- 2016

Responsible for four. agcncy programs undes the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services; oversee
division resources, revenucs, and expenditurcs and monitor budgct performance; general oversight of
programs to meet or exceed agency defined stratcgic goals; supervise program directors; write grants
to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial staternents for funders
and agency; develop fundraising and marketing strategies for programs; represent program:through
pasticipation in state and local inidatives relative to program/division goals and service delivery;
collaborate with stakeholders'and elected officials, including presenting legislative tesimony.

Tri-County Community Action Programs, Inec.

Program/Divistion Direddor: Saupport Center al Burch House

Litsleton, New Ilampll.u.ro 2007- 2013

Oversee daily operation and supcrw.sxon of domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residendal
shelter; write grants to support programs, monitor sesults, and prepare grant reports and financial
statements for funders and pucnt agency; oversce program resoutces, revenues and expenditures, and
monitor budget performance|and progress toward stratcgic goals; create and dircet victim advocacy
programs to ensurc compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and federal law; develop

+ fundraising and marketing stracegics; partcipate in state and Jocal collaborations to enhance vicum
scrvices; represent program in statc and federsd victim service initiatives, includiog prescatation of
legislative testimony; create and present trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standacds
and best practices for vicom services.

P




JL Robillard * 2

Bookkecpes: Women's Hural Entreprencarial Neiwork (WREN)

Bethichem, NH ewrreat PT cmployt-cnt

Responsible for grant fiscal tracking, reporting, funds release and account mnsfcrs bi-weckly payroll
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciliations for bank accounts,
credit cards, petty cash, retail and marker sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliadnn for three recail
Incadons, preparing monthly cash flow, forccasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directors.

Tri-County Community Action Programs, Ine. .
Direet Services/Volanteer Coordinator: Support Center at Boreh Ilouse

-Littieton, New Hampehire 1987 to 2007 '

. Provide advocacy and direct service to victims of domestic and sexual vinlence; supervise court
advocacy programs; recruit, train and supervise staff, volunteers, and interns; develop agency systems,
policies and protocnls; create and present community outreach presentations and campaigns; present
schonl-based vinlence prevention classes for grades K-12 ; provide nn-call covenage of crisis line

Dircetor: Haverhill Area Juvenile Diversion Program

Woodsville, New Hampashire 19995.2001

Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion commirtecs; establish commumt) programming for
diverted youth; suppomvc counseling of youth; maintain collaborative relationships between the court
system, juvenile sexvice officers, local pohcc departments, 2nd diversion program; preparc and file

* court reports on diverted youth; community outreach and educadon.

Counselor/Title | Teacher: Northern Family lnsﬁtute-lel’leroon Shelter

Jefferson, New Hampshire  1986-1999

Proride individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth facilitate peer euppon groups, develop
and implement treatment plans and case management services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in
classroom sctting, supervise youth in dzlly living skllls

A ' Edueation
BS in Haman Services, Spriaglield College School of Human Serviees, Bosion, MA
Criminal Justice Concentration, Graduated usth 4.0 GPA

AS in Drug and Alcohol Rehbabilitotion Counecling (DARC Progrom)
Soutbern Conneclicnt Community College, New Hoven, CT

¢ Chairman, Bethlchem Board of Sclectmen, Town of Bethlchem  Twice Elected 2006-2070
Chsirman, Asts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-2003, Treasanr 1996-1998
Chairman, Haverhill Ares Family Violence Council  1998-2003

Certified PRIME FOR LIFE Ympaired Driver Intervention Program Instructor #NFH16199
Registered Sexual Harassment Prevention Trainer in the State of New Hampshire

Board Member, Women’s Rural Enereprencurial Neework 2014, Tudrideal Mensber 2008-2017
Bethlchem Phanning Board 2010 - 2015 '

Bethlchemn Conservaton Commission 2006 - carrens

Granite United Way, North Country Cabinet Member  2011-2012

TCCAP: Commendation- Division Ditcctor Awaed, 2077

Bethlchem Citizen’s Advisory Committee on Recycling  2007-2070

Licensed Foster Parent, State of NH  2000-2006

Small Business Owner : Autors Energies 201 5. ewrrent

Speakeasy Trio Jaze Vocalist/ Swect Jamm Swing Band Jazz Vocalist 1227- aurear

Member, United States Figure Skating Associaton/International Skating Institute  cwrrent sina 1993

*® S+ & 0 ¢ B B e




RANDALL Sz PILOTTE

SUMMARY

Accounting professional with over 29 years of experience, of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturer.
16 years of cxpericnce managing accounting professionals. Key compciencies include:

i
Financial Statcments Accounts Payables - Inventory Fixed Assets
Paytoll Bank Reconciliations Accounts Receivables Sales/Use Tax
Budgeting Cash.Flow Management Audits Forecasting

EXPERIENCE

TRI.COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC., Berlin, NH . _ 06/2013-Present

CFO (2017 — Present) :

Work closely with the CEOQ, Treasurer and Finance Committee to identify performance goals for the Agency and to
maintain systems to monitor performence against those goals. Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and cveluate the
financiel management systems and activitics of the Agency with a budget of $18M.

.

Prepare/provides conplete and accurate financial, statistical, and accounting records for the Agency and outside
regulatory agencies. . '

As a-member of the scnior management team, assists in the formulation 2nd execution of corporate finance
policies, objectives and programs.

Preperes program and sgency budgets in conjunction with the CEO and Program Directors. Plan, direct,
coordinate, implement and evaliiate fiscal performance reviews of Tri-County CAPs divisions.

Hire, train, direct and evaluate cmployee performance within the department; recommend promotions and salary
adjustments. i '

Provides supervision and direction for the Facilities Management Team, ensuring that all mortgagcs, leases and
covenants are maintained for Tri-County CAP's facilities. Creation of five-year capital plan.

Reviews cash flows for cach division, monitor cash management practices, and monitorinvestments associated
with each property. =

Prepared five-year debt reduction plan,

Fiscal Director/Interim CFO (201 6201 T

Accounting Manager (2015-2016)

Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general fcdgcr, payroll, and accounts
payable, accounts reccivable, cash receipts and fixed assets.

Preparc and supervise the pmqluc::tion of financial statements including Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense
Reporis, and Cost Summarieson a monthly and annual basis. * :

Maintain proper accounting controls on grants and contibutions 1o ensure accurate revenue reporting and expense
tracking to support periodic monitoring’s by funders and auditors.

Easure all balance sheet, revenuc and expense acoounts are analyzed and reconciled penicdically.

Collaborate with Division Difectors to monitor departmental revenue and cxpenses versus budget.

Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual financial teporting; and implementing
departmental goals. , : ’
Preparc audit schedulcs for exteral auditors.

Collaboratc with external auditors in completing annual sudit in a timely manner.

1
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Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)

RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:/

1

KENT NUTRITION GROUP, INC. (fk/a Blue Scal Feeds, Inc.), Londonderry, NH 03/1989-09/201C
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Assistant Controller (2005-2010)

Ensured an accurate and timely monthly and year end close, consisting of the preparation of a consolidated and
individual financial statcroent in accordance with GAAP for ninc manufacturing plants and 11 retail stores with
gross revenues in excess of $200M. Additional responsibilities included preparing journal entries, account
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation. '

Managed, trained, and supervised a staff accounlant responsible for ensuring accurate journal entries, inventory . '

reconciliation, lonnage tax retums, bank reconciliations, and assignment of special projects.

Oversaw all aspects of proprictary software, multi-statc payroll system for 500 employces. Prepared all federal
and state payrol! tax reports, including quentcrly and ycar-end returns, processing of W2s, and supervision of
payroll clerk, - o :

(nteifaced with 18 various banks throughout New England and Mid -Atlantic area used a3 depositories. -

‘s. Preparcd multi-stmte salcs/use tax returns end acted as point of contact for audits.

e Pro-sctively coached and consulted plaat and store management on the annuat budget dcvelopment process.
¢ Oversaw month-end accruals.

e Assisted and responded to suditors’ requests on annual audit.

e Filed annual franchisc and abandoned propenty reports with appropriate states.

Accounting Manager (1999-2005)

Supported the Corparate Controller’s initiatives by providing supavisi;}n and oversight to the Accounting tunction.
Supervised and trained two accounts psyable clerks on Chart of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and eccurate
processing and payment of vendor's invoices, employee trave] reimbursements, and standard accounting practices.

Accountant/Payroll Supervisor (1994-1999)

Accountant (1989-1994)
NORTHERN TELECOM, INC., Concord, NK _ 05/1987-03/1989

Associate Resuits Accountant (1988-1989) b

Accounts Payable (1987-1988)

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science, Accounting, FRANKLIN PIERCE COLLEGE, Concord, NH
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.~ “If human beings arc perceived as potentials rather than
problems, as possessing strengthsinstead of weaknesses, as
J. unlimitedrather then dull and unresponsive,then theythrive

andgrow totheircapabilities.”

~Barbara Bush

Experience

July 2020-Preaont
Chief Programs Officer ~ TCCAP, Inc

Responsible to provide leadership, supervision, oversight, and manegement of
the agency's programs and services directly or through a program director or
manager ag well 25 works with the Chief Executive Officer to develop futurc
business for the agency. Responsible to ensure that all programs and services
comply with nationsl program standards and state / federal governing laws and
requirements. :

May 2019-Prosont

Division Director« TCCAP, Inc- Prevention

Responsible to provide Sr. Leadership and oversight to the development,

design, daily operation, compliance, and financial solvency of the programs
and facilities under Prevention Services which include Guardianship Services;
Homeless Programs, including Tylter Blain Homeless Shelter, and Advocacy
and Support Services for Victims of Domestic Violence and Sexusl Assault,
including Emergency Shelter Services at the Support Center at Burch House

Sopt. 2018-Prosent
Division Operstions Coordinator = TCCAP, Inc- Prevention

Responsible for monitoring compliance of grant defiverables and legal / cthical
integrity of programs and services offcred throughout the Division. Responsible
to compile and analyze division data; reporting trends and outcomes lo Sr.
mansgement and local stakeholders. Responmsible to develop, review, and
updatc program written policy, procedures, and work flows, Responsible for
program development and oversight. )

May2017-August 2018
Nortbh Country SUD Continuum of Care Facll 1iLe
Caordinator «North Country Health Consortyigh)= - . -
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April 2014-May 2017
Division Director « TCCAP, Inc- Clinical Services

sponsible to provide Sr. Leadcrship and oversight to the development,
gn, daily operation, compliance, and financial solvency of the programs end,
ities under Clinical Services including the Division of Alcohol and other
RServices, Friendship House; the region’s 32- bed Residential Treatment
and the Tamworth Dental Center Practice.

pM—-Aprit 2014 .
Jeinte Division Director sTCCAP, Inc- Division of Alcohol and Drugs

forijunction with the Division Director, responsible to provide joint Sr.
dership end oversight to the development, design, daily operation,
‘agmpliance, and financial solvency of the programs and fecilities under the
‘Bivision of Alcohol and other Drug Services, including Friendship Housc, the
:/region’s 32- bed Residential Treatment facility, the out-patient SUD treatment
- practice with 6 satcllite sités throughout the 3 counties tn the North Country and
the !mpaired Driver Carc Management Program.

Accomplishments

Friendship House New Construction-Bethlchem, NH-$5.2 MIL - 2015-2018
17.588-3q fi. 32-Bed Residential Substance Use Disorder ‘I'reutment Facility

s, Submission of statc and fedcral grant applications resulting in $2.7 MIL in
awards & cxecuted s grass roots sdvocacy campaign securing the remaining $2.5
MIL in anonymous donations

« Issucd all final project approvals on the design, project developnwent,
construction, submission of permit applicetions end town zoning roquirements,
and licensure and compliance standards.

‘Impiemented New Reimbursement System, 2015

«  Eliminated tbe Division's dependence on grant funding by successfully procuring
contrects and credentialing with NH Medicaid, MCQ's, and Commercial
insurance companics creating eligibility to submit claims on a fec-for-scrvice basis
stobilizning revenut and enhancing rates for scrvice.

s Successfully ncgotisted s contract amendmicnt with DHHS to expand billable
services to include Outpatient and Intensive Outpstient scrvices resulting in an
incrense to from $1.8 MIL 10 $2.5MIL

Expert Panelist - Guidsnce Document on Best Practices: Comnumity-Based
MAT for Opioid Usc Disorders in New Hampshire, First Edilion, 2016

Civic Involvement P T‘
2019 - Prosent MWV Supports Recovery Adyffniry Biisid s Morfber’
2017 —Preseat  North Country Screnity Cejf{orBOD” .~ - Officet

2016 - Prosent  Stand-Up Androscoggin VAIEy Cpaljiibn - Member .
2016 -2018 Project Aware, BHS, Adlxqri:Baord “Member e - TR

2017 - Present  Littleton ATOD Coaliti
2018 = Present  Lancaster Arca Coalitio
2016-2017  NCHC Board of Dircct
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Good sense of humor

Excellent written and

oral communication
skills

ging Community | Cultural intelligence | Well- informed in
policy and procedure
development
Profdlent in Office Vensatile and Proficient in budget
edaptable development and
e management
"Sefution focused _Computer and Lateral thinking and
frpblem resolution technology adept logical reasoning
([4hique leadership Knowledgeable grant | Innovative -
. -|'jhrough empowerment | writer '
" ¥Detait oriented - Creative strategic Experienced nen-
planner profit management
Excellent Community | Advocsacy Approachable,

rclatable, and relevant

and political relations

Education

Plymouth State University, Plymouth NH.
*'{_ 2017-In Progress[Business Administration
. Coursework: accounting, economics, finance, management, marketing theories
i end practices of business ethics and social responsibility, quantitative skills to
© analyze.
White Mountains Community College, Berlin NH.
'y 2015-2017[Business Administration ,
Coursework: management, accounting, finance, strategy, economics, statistics,
marketing, operations/project management, entreprencurship, and computer
applications. Completed requirements of the first two years of a four-year
© business administration degree, AS-equivalent, 4.0 GPA
' | White Mouatains Community College, Berlin NH.’
2011 [Leadership North Country
I Coursework: The program sclects a diverse group aspiring leaders in northem
‘New Hampshire through a competitive nomination .end application process.
Candidates participate in a 9-month progrbm focused on education, arts and
culture, lcadership and civil engagement, truvel and tourism, and government
and politics. .

References
Available upon request




Gerald F. Milliken, Jr.

Executive Summam;

Enthusiastic, dedicated and hardworking professional, offering over 20 years of
broad-based experience in Project Direction, policy and procedural development,
tralning & development, budget administration and business operations within fast-
paced environment. ' ’

grience:

TrI-County'Communlty Acﬂqn Program, Inc.
Department Head: Weatherization & Facllities Operations

Berlin, NH
7-1-2020 ta present

Design and Operational guidance of Weatherizatlon Programs and the Agencies Facilities
Department. Observe, analyze, and offer suggestions on current operations.

Establishing professions) relationships with clients, statf, and other stakeholders.
Malntaining relationships with clients and finding crealive ways to expand the programs
effectiveness. .

- Tri-County Community Actlon Program, Inc.
Program Manager/ Director: Woatherization & Employment Programs

Berlin, NH
4-1-13106-31-2020

Provide leadership and oversight to program's operations, budgets and reporting; ~
Coordinate and integrate programs’ aclivities.
* Hire, supervise and manage staff, including in-house and itinerant employees.
Prepare grants and proposals. -
Develop, prepare and implement program budgets, naatives.
Review and recancile program financial reports for reimbursement. -
Interact with program menitors, outside auditors, Faderal agancy audltors and others In
reviaw of program ectivities, compliance and financial accountability
Develop new programs and funding streams s appropriate. '

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. :
Crew Chiaf/ State Certified Energy Auditor Berlin, NH 5-1-05to 4-1-15



Northern Express Eatery, Inc. North Conway, NH

President | General Manager 11-1-2002 to 5-15-2005

Estimated food and beverage costs, requisilioning and purchasing supplies
Assisted subordinates in identifylng and resolving problems.

Conferred with food preparation and other personnel to plan menus and related
aclivities. :

Directed hiring and assignment of personnel.

investigated and resolved food quality and service complaints.

Maintained all records and produced repoits.

Executed daily operations of restaurant management.

Hatfield-Reynolds Electric an IES, inc. Company Phoenix, AZ

Project Manager '  5-15-2000 to 10-30-2002

Applied knowiedgs of the construction trade in the daily operation of duties.
Reviewed project proposals lo determine ime frame, funding fimitations, procedures
for Accomplishing project, staffing requirements and allotment of available resources
to various phases of projects.

ISO Enterprises,inc. Lake Havasu Cly AZ

Presidont| GeneralManager 6-1-1994 fo 5-15-2000

Purchased ARTISAN ELECTRIC, INC.and changed the name. :

Contracted to perform specified construction work across the state of Arizona in
accordance with architect's plans, blueprints, codes and other specifications.
Estimated costs of materials, labor and use of equipment required to fulfill provisions
of contract ahd prepared bids.

Conferred with clientsto negotiate terms of contract, . .

Assisted subordinates in identifying and resolving problems.

Demonstrated effective presentation skills.



Education: -

NHTI Concord

Associates Degree in Electronic Technology 1985
Theory

LRCC : Laconia
Electrical Systems Installation & Maintenance, 1988
Required for Journeymen eleclrical testing and Stale

Licenses.

Additicnal Training:

8 CUE training course for Grant writing for non- profits. To enhance my position on the
board of at Children Unlimited, Inc.

Successfully completed GE's prestigious “SIX SIGMA™ management course in 2001
While Employed with

" Hatfield-Reynolds Electric an IES, hc. Company Phoenix; AZ.

Successfully completed training courses and seminars for,lead safework prachces
asbestos awareness, OSHA 30, CPRelectrical code updates.

Successfully completed Business management classes in AZ

Curing the 1995-2001.

Successfully completed training and tesling to be a NH Stale certified Energy Auditor
in 2006.

Cdm’munlty:

Board member Children Unlimited, Inc., Conway NH "Non- Profit*

Board member Berin Revlitalization Committee. Beriin NH "Non- Profit*

Past member of the advisory board and co-designer for the Myotonlc Dystrophy
Foundations first website. ,

Previous owner and webmaster for the Myotonic. Dystrophy tnfonnatjon websile,

License:

Held an Electrical Journeyman liceanse NH
Held an Electrical Contractor License AZ

_Reférences: Avallable upon request. v




| Nathan H, Mills

PROFESSTONAL SUMMARY and SXILLS

Operations Manager with experience and oversite of Finandal, Quality Assurance and Operations
components for non-profit organizations and small businesses. Professional, flexible with proven
analytical skills. Demonstrated record of effective problem solving, sound business judgement and
customer service.

¥ Business Development Planning & Budgeting ¥ Staff and Sub-contractor Management .
¥ Sage/MIP Fund Accounting, GAAP & ROMA ¥’ Client 8 Vendor Relations
~ Assst Management | v Volunteer Refations
v Extensive daily use of Microsoft Excel v Certificate, IEANSIxSIgmaGremBelt,USMZOIG
»  Contract Negodation, Administration & Compllance < Cartificate, Project Management, USM 2014
PROFESSIONAL EXPREJENCE ,
Division Operations Manager. : Since April 2019’ |

Tr-County Communlty Action Program, Berfln, New Hampshire ,

Operational, Administrative and Fisca! oversite for Govenment and" Utility ﬁunded programs that
provide home effidency, insulation and heating system upgrades to income eligible households in
Carroll, Coos and Grafton Counties, New Hampshire.

. * Operational oversight of Utflity HEA and HPwES, and Federal DOE and DHHS low Income Weatherization, Heat System
repalr and replacement programs.
»_Oversee all aspects of Program Operations and Project Management including; program budget development and

authorization of expenditures according to contracted budget agreements, dient dlgibmty and program compliance,
hiring training, supervising and, evah:athg department staff,

L)

Inside Production Manager . .
TC Hafford Basement Systems, Wells, ME ’ , 2018

Inside Production Manager responsible for managing scheduling and close out of dry basement
systems Instails.

« Lialson wlth homeowner throughaut scheduling, install and doseout ptoosse& Liaison with sales team and Outside
Production Manager to ensure propasal, installation and material costs met dient expectations, company standards
and warmranty requirements for dry basement systems.

Project Manager
PATCO Construction, Sanford, ME : 2016 - 2018

Project Manager responsible for managlng residential home construction process thrmghout the
planning, scheduling, material procurement and construction processes.

+ Uiaison to homeowner throughout entire construction process from contract signing to dosing. Weekly telephone
update and change order estimate and management. Malntain master schedule on Bulider Trend project management
software. Schedule sub-contractors, Inspect work to project spec., lssue rework and appmve invoices for payment.
Job cost oversite, materlals ordering and Inventory management.

Director, Housing and Energy Services . 2009 - 2016
The Opportunity Alllance, South Portiand, ME .




Business, Fiscal, Operational and Compliance responsibility for federally funded programs that provide
home energy and emergency assistance, HQS home repair, and home efficiency and insulation
upgrades to income eligible households in Cumberiand and York County, Maine.

« Contract, Operationad and Fisal oversight of Federal DOE and DHHS low lncome Weatherization, Central Heat
Improvement and Efficiency Maine Energy Conservation Programs.

¢ Oversee all sub~grantee contractual respansibilities of dlent Intake, certification and benefit determination, program
integrity and compllance for Federal OHHS LIHEAP Grant, provkiing home heating benefits to approximately 3,500
tow-income Cumberland County households annually.

« Qversee all aspects of Program and Project Management induding; citent eligiblfity and program compliance of NMLS
Licensed Agency Lending for HUD, MSHA, Maine DECD and Cumbertand County Community Development. Program
‘funding supported home repair, home renovation and energy effidency upgrades of very low to moderate income
households in Cumberiand and York County,

Business Manager 2006 - 2009
SmartCatalog, Portiand, ME .

Managed all business activity for nationa!l cataloger providing Office of the Registrar course catalog
and other legally binding documents to colleges and universities in the United States and Canada.

Accounting Associate ' 2004 - 2006
Southern Maine Agency on Aging, Scarborough, ME

Responsible for business office functions of AP/AR and Payroll for non-profit agency. In this position, I
was accounting liaison for a variety of programs among others, and was responsible for accurate
payroll processing for departments that operated 24/7/365.

Retail Catalog and Advertising phoz'ugrapher , 1998 - 2004
Howell-LId., Portiand, ME .

‘Managing studio photographer for New Engtand’s first digital commercial photography studio
responsible for project management, process workfiow, and capadty and demand management.

EDuCATION

- Bachelor of Arts, Geography
U{:M:m'cy of Maing, Farmington, 1983

Continuing Studies, Business, Accounting, Project Management and Human Resources
University of Southern Maine, ongoing

COMMUNITY SERVICE
Biddeford School Committee, Vice Chairman ) :

Qr-cmmnan Curricuium Committee; Anance Oommlttee Personnel Committeg; Chief Negotiator (Coltective
Bargaining) Hected to consecutive 2 year terms In 2006 and 2008. Served during period that school system
undertook a $30 million dollar renovation of Blddeford High School.

Central America Volunteer wotk
Heredia, Costa Rice & San Bernadine Guatemak

“s. Travel to Costa Rica In 2006 & Guatermala in Zooswlﬂ\nvdunteerteammbuud 2'timber ﬁ-amembonalccnw and
water filtration system.

References avallable upon request

——




DENNIS DOWNS

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY
Skilled Energy Auditor with experience in the Energy Conservation industry. Familiar with a House as a System.

Experienced in Blower Door Testing.

SKILLS
¢ Self-motivated ¢ Goal oriented fast lcarner
o Strong verbal communication ¢ Make safety & priority
¢ Mechanically Inclined ¢ Committed to making the clicnt happy
® Accustomed to working in all weather conditions * Have knowledge of hand and power tools
® Eager to learn new skills

WORK HISTORY

Production Supervisor, 04/1994 (o Current

Tri County CAP - 30 Exchange St Berlin NH 03570
Supervise multiple weatherization teams doing single family and multi-family installations. -

e Oversee maintenance and management of warchouse including keeping inventory and ordcnng of
materials.

Perform energy audits to determine the mast cost effective encrgy improvements.

Obtained documents, clearances, certificates and approvals.from loca), state; and federal agencies.
Production management of crews to meet deadlines and budget objectives.

Working directly with client to achieve a more energy efficient home.

. e 0

Packer/Inspector, 09/1993 to (04/1694

JenFoot America Inc — Littleton Industrial Park Littleton NH 03561
¢ Managed a line of three to four workers.
» Inspected rubber boots for imperfections.

Laborer, 07/1993 to 09/1993

LA Environmental ~ Louseville Kentucky
¢ Helped remove sludge from the pollution control lagoons at Simpson Paper Co in Gilman VT.

:

" Apprentice Electrician, 10/1992 10 02/1993
Royal Electric - Woodsville NH
¢  Work under multiple master electricians wiring the new Lisbon School.

EDUCATION

Associatc of Applied Scicace: Electrical Consiruction, 1992
NH Vocational Technical College — Prescott Hill, Laconia, NH 03246

CERTIFICATIONS
,* BPI Quality Control Inspector &, BPI Energy Auditor
¢ Lcad Safe Renovator T ¢ CPR/First Aid

« (QSHA 30 . ¢ Valid Drivers Licensc




JESSICA YOUNG

Professional Summary

Muiti-talented Program Supervisor driven to optimize processes and improve
productivity to maximize program successes. Extensive experience in management with
a strong work ethic. Excelling and maintaining financlal documentation and reporting to
department heads. Polite with a professional approach to daily tasks. Ready to take
each year of my Tri-County Community Action Program career to the next level as the
Office/Program Supervisor for the Weatherization Department. '

Work Experience

Qffice/Program Supervisor: Tri-County CAP, Berlln NH: April 2019-Current

In this position | am responsible for program and office functions of the Weatherization
Department. My responsibilities include supervising, providing quality oversite,
inquiring performance measurement, supply training, and/or coordination of training
for the office staff. In coordinatlon with the Division Director, my role is to record
revenues and expenses to our fiscal department, invoice our funders for payment of
services completed by our weatherization department. | provide guidance to our office
staff on client intake with a priority scheduling focus. | do work collaboratively with the
Production Supervisor ensuring the scheduling of energy audits is suffictent, | procure
job supplies and materials for weatherization Jobs, and give guidance to the
coordination of heating system installations for both failing heating systems and
emergency no-heat situations. | am here to provide supervision and leadership to office
staff, presently including; the Weatherization Administrator and the Procurement,
Inventory and Facilities Specialist.

Office Manager: Gorham Family Dentistry, Gorham NH: May 2011- May 2018

Skills

*Operational Leadership
*Reporting Requirements
*Proactive Mindset
*Persuasive Communication
Style

*Document Management
*Team Oriented

Education

May 2011 — White
Mountain Community
College, Berlin NH

Associates Degree ..
Business
Management/Medical .
Concentration

Supervised a total of 6 staff members. Managed [T problems and issues with research and technical support. Controlled
computer issues by troubie-shéoting_ issues in the network. Maintained computerized schedules for 3 doctors and 2
hygienists. Implemented a plan for each new student dentist from UNE every 3 months. Handled insurance claims,
entered Insurance payments, adjusted patients ledgers, and administered bills via mall. Answered multi-ling telephone

" while checking patients in and out. Created treatment plans and discussed payment options with patients. Was
responsible for staff and patient relations. Created marketing ideas for Facebook and newspapers. Trained staff on front
end procedures. Enforced HIPAA guidelines by coordinating annual tralnings for HIPAA compliance. Scheduled meetings |

for open enroliment and coordlnated Aflac representation to assist with secondary options.

Customer Service Manager: Walmart, Gerham NH: October 2000-October 2008

Supervised staff members from several departments threughout the store, Trained new hires on front end procedures
and effective time management. Scheduled cashiers and service desk assoclate to designated areas while maintalning
the schedule throughout the day implementing reliefs for breaks, lunches, and end of shifts. Attended Share Holders
meetings in reference to stock owned and new options coming up. Managed storewide assoclate register Issues and/for
customer relation questions. Collected surplus of cash in register tills to drop off to the accounting office. Designated
assoclates during each shift to assist with reorganizing the stock on shelves for customer accessibllity.
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Qualiﬁcati;ons

- ACCURATE | EFFICIENT | DETAILED

Comprechensive knowlkedge of steounting prindples, prymll, and ox lews. Extrundinuy sttencon o demil with
keen ahility to prepare and ansljze finandal mports. Expertite in Word, Fxel, QuickBouoks sofowere, and tax
prepanition software. Familiar with entering daw, filing, servicing invoices, billing, and paying employees. Willingness
to go sbove und beyond job desoription. Fast lemer with proven sbility ro sdape to new technology, procedurcs,
and office equipment.

Areas of Expertise

¥ Accounts Papable/Roccivable ¥ Finindgd Reporting ¥ Accounting Sofewsre
¥ Receptionist ¥ Month-End Closings ¥ Excel Spreadsheens
¥ Dun Input ¥ 10 Key by Touch ¥ Microsoft Word
) ¥ Bank Recondllistion ¥  Tix Reumn Prepantion ¥ Power Poinr
Professional Experience
] R .
TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM.  Berlin, NH 03570 603-752-71001

Eleven moaths expedience in dedica) 1nd coordination work. Duzies indude: mainnining heating systems
progrums datu collection, dssisting with waatherizarion reporting, coordinating heat system work, paperwork,
subcontmctor conncts, receiving and processing dicoe calls for all programs snd funding, responding to dient
aall, refermls, and fud vendors, managing weathaization fect, and performing basic office functions.
SERVICE ADVISOR .
BERIIN CITY FORD - Gorham, NH 03570 . 603-752-6644
Four years experience of derical work and austomer service Daily dutias induded maneging group of technidians
and disparching work a3 scheduled. Work induded: answering phones, castomer service, filing, ooping invaicss,
typing, duma enry, recording and rraddng inventory, inputting new inventory, invoiding, pmmoting and sclling -
scrvice, mansging technicans, and mainmining accounss payable and scouunes roccivable.

P .
PORTLAND GLASS ‘ Gorham, NH 03581 603-752-5507
Two years experienar of derical work 18 #n Inside Sales Represenaarive and openaring of the nore daily. Dutics
induded: answering phones, qustomer service, filing, copying, inveicing, scheduling, quoting, nping, data cotry,
monthly mventory, reeciving product, ondering product, rectiving and ending bills, expense eeports, making bank
depotits, doseout roports, contacting vendos, entedng payroll, wage minsgens, and monthly finandal seavements.

Volunteer Experience !

YOLUNTEER TAX PREPARER

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER Gorham, NI{ 03581 603-4566-5190
Volunteered for the VITA Program. Accuratdy worked on and prepared Jodividua! and Small Business Fedend
Income Tax retums. Assisted in the preparation of Vermont seatc wax recurns, as well a3 Resident Alien's tax
retumns, Highly czpable of preparing tax retums with todal security income, retirement income, ndtion statements,
unemployment income, interest on bank sccounts, and dividends from baaks. Intamal Revenue Scrvice Cortified
Tux Preparer for 2010 & 2001, 1ax retums.

Education .
WHITE MOUNTATNS COMMUNITY COLLEGE PHILTHETA KAPPA
Aszacdiates Degrees: Actounting & Business Administmetion White Mounuzins Community College
Certificste: Entitpenuenship Presidenc 2011-2012

Baiin, NH 03570 ‘ Memher Since 2010

—
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